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1 CHAI RPERSON JARBCE: Good afternoon.  Wé're 1 and voting on each case will occur in business session
2 going to get started. Vélcone to the Cctober 6, 2016 2 heldimediately after the conclusion of testinony
3 regular neeting of the Louisville Metro Planning 3 related to the case. Any statements related to the
4 Cormi ssion for hearing of land use proposal s 4 cases nust be made during the public portion of the
5 advertised and docketed for today. The agenda for 5 hearing. Al docunents and records and P anni ng
6 today's meeting will be as follows: Mnutes fromthe 6 Conmission files have been available for public
7 last Planning Commission meeting will be considered for 7 inspection in the Panning Commssion office. Anyone
8 approval followed by the consideration of any business 8 interested in today's case should pick up a copy of the
9 session itens on the consent agenda. MNext, we will act 9 handout titled, "After the Public Hearing," located on
10 on non- hearing cases such as deferred zoni ng cases and 10 the table at the rear of the room This will tell you
11 street closures. Then we address the principle segnent 11 what will happen after the public hearing is held and
12 of the agenda, the new business advertised for public 12 howto stay informed about a rezoning case. A so,
13 hearing. Then (Inaudible) applications shall be read. 13 please turn off any cell phones, put themon vibrate, so
14 Saff will present a brief sunmary of each case, 14 that you're not causing any problens during the neeting.
15 including a description of the proposal and an outline 15 And for anybody that is planning on speaking today, I
16 of the nost inportant issues. The staff report was 16 need you to stand up and take the oath. If you're
17 provided to the Comm ssion menbers in advance of today's 17 planning on saying anything at all at today's meeting,
18 hearing. Copies of the staff report have been availabl e 18 please stand. Do you swear or affirmthat the testinony
19 inthe office of the P anning Commission and area 19 that you will provide the P anning Conmission today is
20 available for reviewat the rear of the room Ve wll 20 the truth? Thank you. Ckay. First agenda itemis the
21 not read the staff report into the record, however, the 21 approval of the mnutes fromthe Septenber 19, 2016
22 staff report for each case on the agenda i s hereby 22 night hearing. Those Commissioners present were nyself,
23 incorporated into the official record of this hearing. 23 Marilyn Lews, Lula Hward, Rchard Carlson, David
24 Next, the applicant or a representative may nake a 24 Tomes, Enma Smth, Robert Kirchdorfer, Robert Peterson,
25 statement in support of the application being considered 25 difford Turner, and Jeff Brown. Has anyone had an
Page 3 Page 5
1 by the Planning Conmission. Qher persons in support of 1 opportunity to read those minutes?
2 the application will then be heard. Thereafter, those 2 QCOW SS ONER HOMRD:  Yes.
3 inopposition to the application will be heard, and 3 OCOW SSIONER JARBCE: Thank you.  Thank you,
4 finally, the applicant or representative nay be heard in 4 M. Howard.
5 rebuttal. During a person's time to speak, he or she 5 W SSONR M. Chairnman, 1'd like to nake
6 may ask questions of any prior speaker or governnent 6 anotion that we approve the mnutes as witten.
7 enpl oyee present who has reviewed the case. Each 7 COW SSI ONER HOMRD: Second.
8 speaker nust remain available for questioning, 8 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: (kay.  VE have a
9 otherwise, his or her testimony will not be considered. 9 properly made notion and a second. Any further
10 Al speakers are asked to state their name and address, 10 discussion? Hearing none, roll call vote.
11 including ZIP code, for the record when they approach 11 CLERK  Conmi ssi oner Lewi s?
12 the podi umand before naking any other statenent. 12 OOW SSI ONER LEWS:  Yes.
13 Bveryone wishing to provide testinony must fill out a 13 CLERK  Conmi ssi oner Brown?
14 speaker's record form These forns are available on the 14 QCWM SSI ONER BROMR  Yes.
15 table at the rear of the room P ease note the 15 QLERKC  Commi ssi oner  Howar d?
16 following tine limts are in effect for each case on 16 QOW SSI ONER HOMRD:  Yes.
17  today's agenda unless additional tine has been approved 17 CLERC  Conmi ssi oner Smith?
18 in advance. The staff will have five nminutes for the 18 QOMW SSIONER SMTH  Yes.
19 staff presentation. The applicant's representative and 19 CLERC  Commi ssi oner Carl son?
20 other persons in favor of the application will have a 20 COW SSI ONER CARLSON Yes.
21 total of no nmore than 20 mnutes for the remarks. 21 CQLERK  Conmi ssi oner Tur ner ?
22 Persons opposed to the application shal|l have a total of 22 QOW SS ONER TURNER  Yes.
23 no nore than 25 mnutes to offer comments on the 23 CLERK  Cormi ssi oner Pet erson?
24 proposal and they applicant will then have five ninutes 24 QCOW SSI ONER PETERSON  Yes.
25 for rebuttal. The P anning Conmission's deliberations 25 CLERK  Conmi ssi oner Jar boe?
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1 OOW SSI ONER JARBCE: Yes. 1 projector screens. However, with the projector screens,
2 QLERK  Thank you. 2 we -- the way we woul d set up, the Commi ssioners woul d
3 QOMM SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.  Next on the 3 have to turn or, you know, be seated to face the screen
4 agenda at the public hearing, there are two cases 4 vhile the presentations were being given and that woul d
5 9-58-89 and 9-36-96. Both of those are hinding el enent 5 in-- that would be the situation for both places.
6 citations, and they have been continued to Qctober 20, 6 There's just standard gymoverhead |ighting in the Bates
7 sonoactionto take on -- do we need to nake a notion? 7 Benentary location. There's theatre lighting in the
8 (Ckay. Al right. Someone please make a notion that 8 auditorium-- the Fern Greek Hgh School auditorium
9 both of these cases -- well, separate the cases. 9 location so there -- you could -- there's different
10 QOMM SSIONER HOMRD: - M. Chai rman, regardi ng 10 lighting. The acoustics in the Bates Henentary woul d
11  Case Nunber 9-58-89/15424 and Case Nunber 9- 36-96 11 be simlar to a gym and then for Fern Greek Hgh
12 Binding Eement, | nove that we continue both cases to 12 School, it would be simlar to a theatre as far as the
13 Qctober 20, 2016 P anni ng Conmission Public Hearing. 13 sound. There are four mcrophones available to use at
14 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Thank you. 14  Fern Qreek. There's at |east one available at Bates
15 OCOW SSIONER  Second. 15 Henentary, but we generally bring our own microphones
16 OOW SSIONER JARBCE:  (kay. V¢ have a 16  anyways. V& would bring our portable sound systemfor
17 properly made notion and a second. No further 17 Bates Henentary and the auditoriumhas an existing
18 discussion. Roll call vote. 18 sound system Both places have plenty of parking. Bates
19 CLERC  Conmi ssi oner Lewi s? 19 Henentary has direct accessibility for anyone that
20 QOW SSIONER LEWS:  Yes. 20 mght have any kind of handicap issues whereas, the Fern
21 CLERK  Conmi ssi oner Brown? 21 Qeek Hgh Shool, it's accessible, but it's indirectly
22 OOW SS| ONER BROMR  Yes. 22 accessible. V¢ would be -- nost peopl e woul d be
23 CLERC  Conmi ssi oner  Howar d? 23 entering the auditoriumand woul d have to go up about 10
24 QOW SS ONER HOMRD:  Yes. 24 or less stairs, and if you had sone accessibility
25 QLERC  Conmi ssi oner Smith? 25 issues, you would have to go down to the front of the
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1 QOW SSONER SMTH Yes. 1 building and enter through the auditorium a little bit
2 CQLERK  Commi ssi oner Carl son? 2 different so
3 OOW SSI ONER CARLSONE Yes. 3 QOW SSONER  You got a recomrendat i on?
4 QLERK  Commi ssi oner Tur ner ? 4 M5. WLLIAVE: They both seemsinilar. You
5 COW SSI ONER TURNER Yes. 5 one, we'd have to set up the chairs and the other one,
6 CQLERC  Cormi ssi oner  Pet er son? 6 the chairs are clearly already there, but they're -- the
7 QOMWM SSI ONER PETERSCN  Yes. 7 locations are pretty sinilar.
8 QLERK  Commi ssi oner  Jar boe? 8 COW SSIONER  |'s that Bates 250 -- is that
9 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Yes. 9 withthe cafeteria open or not?
10 QLERC  Thank you. 10 M5, WLLIAVE: That's without the cafeteria
11 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Thank you.  Ckay.  Next 11  open, so that would clearly be -- the 250 seats woul d be
12 on the agenda is 15ZONE1036. That is setting a location 12 folding chair type seats and then the cafeteria, if it
13 for the night hearing for 15ZONE1036 on Novenber 9, 13 needed to be opened, it woul d be the cafeteria seating
14 2016. Project nane is Bardstown Pavilion, and the Case 14 where you would sit on like, the little stools around
15  Manager is Julia WIlians. 15  the tables.
16 M5. WLLIAME: | was able to go to both the 16 OCOW SSIONER  But are those chil d-si zed
17 Bates Henentary and Fern Qreek H gh School sites to 17 stool s?
18 look at their facilities. And so this is the Bates 18 M5. WLLIAVE: They are nore oriented towards
19 Henentary's facility. This wall can open up into the 19 children. Yes.
20 cafeteria, so that roomcould be larger. And this, the 20 QOMW SSIONER - But the chairs that you woul d
21 Fern Qeek Hgh School |ocation, thisis their 21 set up would not be?
22 auditorium So that's what those two places |ook |ike. 22 M5. WLLIAVE: They're adult chairs. Yes.
23 So-- and | offered like, a general conparison of the 23 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: | woul d be very
24 sites. Bates has about 250 chairs. Fern Qreek, in the 24 surprised that you can get 250 people in the el ementary
25 auditorium they have about 380. They both have 25 auditoriumw thout opening the doors into the -- that's
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1 surprising to ne that it's that |arge. 1 M5. WLLIAVE: | would say so. Yes. But I'm
2 M5. WLLIAME: They have 250 chairs and they 2 sure that, you know, nost people are a little bhit more
3 generally set those up for when they have different 3 accommodating. As long as we get the people out, you
4 things going on for the parents -- 4 know, generally staff cleans things up and, you know
5 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay. 5 helps out so that things can go quicker.
6 M5 WLLIAVE  -- but they -- 6 COW SSI ONER JARBCE: (kay.
7 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: | thought the 250 7 OOW SS ONER - Both of them have stages?
8 would -- 8 M5. WLLIAVE:  They both have stages. | woul d
9 MS. WLLIAVG:  They did not indicate that they 9 not recomrend that we set up a table on either of those
10 wouldn't fit that many in there. 10 stages. It seenmed nore appropriate to set themup
11 OOW SSIONRR JARBCE Ckay.  Got it.  And have 11 below Both stages are not very big that they would be
12 we talked to Fern Greek Hgh School yet about using the 12 able to accommodate the full Cormission, but there's
13 facility? 13 plenty of floor space on both of the | ocations to set up
14 M5. WLLIAVB  Yes. 14 the tables and have it be -- it would be nore level. The
15 OOW SSIONRR JARBCE Ckayy. 15 Bates stage is a little bit bigger than the one at Fern
16 MS. WLLIAMB. | spoke with them yesterday. 16 Creek, but | still would recomend that we set up on the
17 They did say the facility was available on Novenber 9, 17 floor at both of those Iocations.
18 so availability's not an issue. 18 COW SSIONER - Wul d you put the pictures back
19 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay. 19  up, please?
20 COW SSIONER  In both cases, |'msuspecting 20 M5, WLLIAVE: That's Fern Qreek and Bates.
21 Fern Qeek Hgh School might be a little better for 21 OCOW SSIONER  Goul d you go back to Fern
22 traffic than Bates or do you have an opinion on that? 22 (reek, please?
23 MS. WLLIAVG: Not living out there or going 23 M5, WLLIAMB.  Sure.
24 through that area, | don't have an opinion on that. 24 COW SSIONER  To ne, it seens if we're going
25 OOMW SSICNER  Bates is just east of the 25 to be down on the floor, if we were at the high school,
Page 11 Page 13
1 Snyder, correct -- just south of the Snyder? 1 you know, the people that are sitting way back in the
2 M. WLLIAME It is. 2 back will be able to see alittle bit better and, you
3 OOW SSICONER  Yeah. 3 know the Fern Qeek's got the permanent sound system
4 M. WLLIAMG: It is. You know, Fern Qreek 4 versus a portable sound systemat Bates and, you know,
5 Hgh Shool has a light at the intersection to enter 5 sonetimes there's issues with | can't' hear what's being
6 into the school area. |f you're coning from downtown or 6 said whereas, if you have the best sound system
7 so, you would be turning left into Bates H gh School 7 possible, that may reduce it. 1'd like to be sure that
8 [sic] unless you are coming from say, the Munt 8 as many peopl e as possible can hear.
9 \Washington-Aen Miry area. 9 MS. WLLIAVE: Rght. But we would be
10 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Chi ef ? 10 bringing normal Iy what we would bring to, say, the East
11 OOMM SSICONER CARLSON Are there any i ssues 11  Governnent Center to the el enentary school. V¢ would
12 about we have to be done by a certain tine at one place 12 likely still bring it to Fern Creek just in case, but,
13 versus the other? 13 you know
14 MS. WLLIAMB: No. Both places said that they 14 OCOW SSIONER JARBCE: You anti ci pate your
15 coul d accommodate us until midnight, but that we woul d 15 systemwill hook into the Fern Creek existing acoustic
16 have to be out by midnight. 16  systen?
17 OOW SSI ONER HOMRD: Does that i ncl ude 17 M5, WLLIAVE: Rght.
18 putting those chairs back? Are you-all physically doing 18 OOW SSIONER JARBCE Ckay.  Anybody el se have
19 that set-up at Bates? Is staff? 19 any questions?
20 M5. WLLIAME: Yes. | would say that we are 20 COW SSIONER ~ Are those permanent proj ect or
21 putting the chairs anay at Bates. They only have one 21 screens at both of then? Is that one sitting on the
22 custodian that's going to be at both |ocations, so we 22 stage there at Fern Qreek? Is that what you're talking
23 woul d have to take down the chairs. 23 about behind the Commi ssi oners?
24 OOW SSIONER HOMRD: And still be out by 24 M5. WLLIAVE:  Yes. This one rolls out
25  nidnight? 25 simlar to what we've got here. It rolls out of the
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1 ceiling, soit could be, you now put up, and then I 1 Fern Qeek. | just wanted to get that on the record
2 believe the one at Bates is also one that kind of rolls 2 because | do believe that we've had multiple discussions
3 down fromthe ceiling. V@ didn't have it open because 3 about this, and | do look at this case as being kind of
4 they were getting ready to use the gymat the tine soBut 4 aone off because of the sheer nunber of people that are
5 they do have a projector screen there in a very simlar 5 conmng down there. The other government centers --
6 location. 6 Central is the one that probably -- | nean, East -- I'm
7 QOW SS ONER JARBCE: John, did you have a 7 sorry -- not East, but the Central Government Center is
8 question? 8 probably the one that has the snallest amount of seating
9 OQOW SSICNER - When the Conmi ssi oners have to 9 for the public. If this was one where we were talking
10 turn around, does that nean we have to turn 100 percent 10 about the East Governnent Center, | would definitely be
11 around? 11 saying let's go to the East Governnent Center but --
12 MS. WLLIAVE: |"msure you would be able to 12 OQOMWM SSIONER  But both of these | ocations
13 sit at an angle, but, you know either way, you're going 13 seat nore than Central Governnent Center?
14 to have to turn to see the screen. 14 COW SSI ONER JARBCE: Yes.  Yes.
15 OOW SSIONRR JARBCE: Ckay.  Any ot her 15 OCOW SSIONER - Ckay.
16 questions? Al right. | think we need to pick one of 16 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: (kay.  Someone want to
17  these two locations and -- Lula, you want to start? 17  nmake a motion? | guess we have to make a motion, Julia,
18 OOW SSIONER HOMRD: | personal |y prefer Fern 18 is that right, for the location?
19  Qeek Hgh School. Maybe it's more so for the padded 19 M5. WLLIAVE:  Probably shoul d.
20 seats for the citizens. It's not going to help us, but 20 W SSONER M. Chairman, | nove that for
21 at least they would be confortable. And then Fern Qreek 21 Case Nunber 15ZONE1036, our night hearing that we've
22 has four mcrophones available. | don't knowif that 22 already scheduled for Novenber 9, that it be held at the
23 helps us in any way or not, but | prefer Fern Qreek. 23 Fern Qeek Hgh School at 6:00 p.m
24 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Davi d? 24 OOW SSIONER JARBCE Ckay.
25 COW SSIONER TOMES: | think Fern Qeek. | 25 OOW SSIONER TOMES:  Second.
Page 15 Page 17
1 think Fern Creek. The nore confortabl e chairs night 1 OCOW SSIONER JARBCE: W have a properly nade
2 keep people there longer. That's the only negative, but 2 motion and a second. Any further discussion? Hearing
3 no. Fern Qeek seens to make nore sense. 3 none, roll call vote.
4 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay. 4 Qerk: Conmissioner Lewis?
5 COW SSICNER | don't have a strong 5 OCOW SSIONER LEWS: Yes.
6 preference either way. It seens |ike Fern Oreek does 6 CLERC  Conmi ssi oner Brown?
7 have more anenities. Assuning that people can get out 7 QCOW SSI ONER BROMR  Yes.
8 of those rows easy enough, the public when they cone up 8 CLERK  Conmi ssi oner Howar d?
9 to speak since those are fixed chairs. |'massuning 9 OOW SSI ONER HOMRD:  Yes.
10 that's not a problem but it seens |ike Fern Creek does 10 CLERK  Commi ssioner Smth?
11 have more amenities. 11 COW SSIONER SMTH Yes.
12 COW SSIONER  Yeah. | agree. Fern Qreek has 12 CQLERK  Commi ssi oner Carl son?
13 (Inaudible). 13 QCOW SSIONER CARLSON Yes.
14 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: kay.  Qiff? 14 CLERK  Conmi ssi oner Tur ner ?
15 OOW SSIONER TURNER - Fern Oreek. 15 OOW SSIONER TURNER  Yes.
16 COW SSIONER JARBCE. Evma? 16 QLERKC  Conmi ssi oner  Tones?
17 COW SSIONER SMTH  Fern Qreek because of the 17 OOW SSI ONER TOMES:  Yes.
18 better sound system 18 Qerk: Comissioner Peterson?
19 COW SSIONER JARBCE: Chi ef ? 19 COW SSI ONER PETERSON  Yes.
20 OOW SSIONER CARLSON Fern Oreek. 20 CLERK  Commi ssi oner Jar boe?
21 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay. | prefer the 21 QCOW SSIONER JARBCE: Yes.
22 Central Government Center, but 22 CLERK  Thank you.
23 OOW SSIONER  Is it downtown? |s that still 23 QCOW SSIONER JARBCE:  Thank you.
24 OOW SSIONER JARBCE:. O downtown. | will 24 M5, WLLIAVE:  Thank you.
25 defer to the rest of the Commissioners and agree that 25 OOW SSIONER JARBCE:  (kay.  The next case on
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1 the agenda and the last case today is 16AVENDLO00. That 1 it more clear, and have potential |y some standards in
2 istoanend the Land Devel opment Code related to 2 the Code that would hel p address sone of the concerns of
3 clinics. The Project name is dinics Text Arendnent. 3 Metro Qouncil. W do have standards in the Land
4 Louisville Metro is the applicant and Case Manger is not 4 Devel opment Code in Section 4.2.29 where all the
5 Joseph Haberman. It is Brian Mbry. 5 conditional use standards are located, and they are
6 M MABRY: od afternoon, Commission. Brian 6 pretty short and sinple right now-- 4.2.29 Hospitals,
7 Mabry, Louisville Metro Planning and Design Services. | 7 Qinics, and Qher Mdical Facilities. There's a
8 amhel ping our Joe today who is in Indianapolis at a 8 standard for signs, which sets sone linitations on signs
9 conference there. This is a Land Devel opment Code Text 9 kind of basically inresidential areas and that provides
10 Arendrent related to howclinics are handled in our Land 10 inletter Bthere a 30-foot sethack fromany property
11 Devel opnent Code. This is Case 16AMENDLO00. To go back 11 line that a clinic would need to maintain when it is
12 to the beginning for howthis got on your desks, in 12 requesting a conditional use permt. There is one
13 MNovenber of last year, Metro Gouncil passed an ordinance 13 exanple that Joe and | visited recently, the Mre Qinic
14 directing P anning and Design Services staff to research 14 at 1448 South 15th Street. This is a clinic that
15 and draft amendnents to the Land Devel opnent Code 15  Louisville Metro basically runs. | have a few shots,
16  addressi ng et hadone clinics specifically and to take 16 two of the exterior there. The top one is the entry
17 those recomendations to you-all to hold the public 17 there, a secured entry. The lower right one is just
18 hearing and make a recomendation to the Metro Council, 18 kind of the viewfromone of the streets in case you
19 who woul d nake the final decision on a change to the 19 recognize the building. And then the two interior shots
20 Land Devel opnent Code. The ordinance had several 20 arethe waiting roomon the left along with where the
21 sponsors and it provided some initial direction on what 21 nethadone is dispensed. You can see the bathroom areas
22 the drafters were looking for as far as future 22 are over here off the screen nostly, and a security desk
23 regulations in the land devel opment code related to 23 inthe lower, mddle screen as well. Sowe didvisit
24 security, potential loitering, parking, and other 24 and have an extensive, good conversation with one of the
25 inpacts that might take place for surrounding 25 counsel ors there, who educated us on how this one runs.

Page 19 Page 21
1 properties. Sothat was our narching orders, and we 1 Thisoneis, again, a Mtro-run clinic and so like any
2 took it and have spent a significant amount of tine 2 Metro facility, would not be subject to any changes in
3 working on these potential change, and now we are 3 the Land Devel opment Code or any existing provisions of
4 bringing themto you for your recomendation to Mtro 4 the Land Devel opment Code. So these provisions that
5 Qouncil. Qurrently, any -- not just nethadone clinics, 5 you're looking at today would, in nmost |ikelihood, be
6 but any clinics that are related to treating drug 6 applying to private practice clinics that nay be
7 addiction, they are not specifically nentioned in the 7 established. So we did |ook at many al ternatives when
8 Land Devel opment Code, and so whenever sonething |ike 8 doing the initial research on this question and howto
9 that happens, the Planning Drector has to make an 9 regulate. If we were going to regulate clinics and
10 interpretation and figure out where in the Code and of 10 specifical ly methadone clinics, work closely with the
11 all the hundreds of uses listed in the Land Devel opnent 11 County Attorney's (ffice and reviewed sinilar zoning
12 (ode, what kind of listed use is most simlar to the new 12 regulations for other communities that have been adopted
13 use in question. And so the interpretation has been 13 by their local governnents and some of the |egal
14 that a nethadone treatnment clinic, again, or any other 14 decisions and case related to nethadone and drug clinic
15 kind of drug treatnent clinic would fall wthin the 15 regulation. V¢ had kind of three alternatives before us
16 definition of clinic, whichis defined in the Land 16 that we could pick from the first being regul ating
17 Devel opment Code, Section 1.2.2. The interpretation was 17 methadone clinics specifically and having a use in our
18 not too difficult for one reason being that the 18  Land Devel opnent Code that says the sanme nethadone
19 definition of clinic expressly includes the phrase "drug 19 clinics and show ng where they're allowed and what kind
20 clinics." So although there has been sone anbiguity in 20 of standards woul d specifically go along with methadone
21 there, there was sone direction that we had to kind of 21 clinics. The second option woul d be to kind of group
22 latch onto and make the interpretation that of all the 22 any drug-related or drug treatnent clinics together,
23 uses in the Code, a nethadone clinic or any drug 23 including methadone or anything else Iike al cohol or
24 treatment clinic is best classified as a clinic. But we 24 other types of drugs into drug treatnent clinics and
25 have direction fromMetro Gouncil to clarify that, nake 25 having regulations that apply to that group, that kind
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1 of subset. And then the third option would be 1 conditional use pernt as a hospital or medical clinic.
2 regul ating methadone clinics nore broadly along with any 2 The third bullet on page two of four of your staff
3 and all other types of nedical clinics. So, you know 3 report, one way to address outdoor loitering froma lane
4 ninor energency or urgent care clinics or other clinics 4 use perspective is to require any clinic to provide an
5 like that that may not have anything to do wth drug 5 indoor waiting area for clinics. It would have to be
6 treatment. And we ended up going with the third option 6 large enough to acconmodate the level of clients that
7 sothat the proposed changes you' Il see are related just 7 the facility is serving and there are sone KAR-- it's
8 toclinicsin general, which nethadone or drug treatment 8 Kentucky Admnistrative Regulations -- there's a
9 clinics would fall under, along with potentially many 9 citationthat is -- that requirement or that proposed
10 other types of clinics that may exist. W have to be 10 anendnent is in line with sone provisions of Kentucky
11 careful with this in our selecting which alternative to 11 Adnministrative Regulations. The fourth bullet in the
12 follow because there are rules related to the Awericans 12 staff report on page 2 of 4, which these are, again,
13 wvith Disabilities Act that can apply and do apply to 13 summaries of the actual proposed anendments. To address
14 those addicted to drugs who are seeking treatment. You 14 the inpact on adjacent properties, require parking to be
15 can't single themout as a specific type of person to 15 adequate to accormodate the nunber of clients that are
16 have regul ations on that don't apply to other types of 16 being served at the site. And that criteriaandit's
17 people, so there was a great deal of caution that we 17 asoinline with a provision of Kentucky Adninistrative
18 observed when trying to put these proposal s toget her 18 Rules. Then the final bullet on page 2 of 4 of the
19 related to ADA  Sothis is where the print gets a 19 staff report is to require hospitals and nedical clinics
20 little smaller, and | put in a screen capture, which 20 to be located on or near a collector or arterial street
21 really covers what is on this side with the blue 21 classification with reasonabl e access to public
22 lettering. This kind of makes it, hopefully, alittle 22 transportation. That's the summary of the proposed
23 nmore clear, but you can also look in your staff report 23 amendnents, and | could go through themline by line or
24 on page 2 of 4 where there's a bulleted list of changes 24 accept questions fromyou on what they entail. These
25 inthe draft regulations seek to acconplish. The first 25 slides kind of showthe actual strikethrough and
Page 23 Page 25
1 bullet has to do with definitions where we change clinic 1 underline and narkup or the proposed changes, which I
2 tonedical clinic and revise that definition to include 2 kind of, again encapsulated in the bul l eted points |
3 drug treatment clinics. And alot of these, you could 3 just went through. | do have on the screen sone
4 think of themas housekeepi ng or wordsmthing, but that 4 proposed findings for this Text Amendnent and | printed
5 can be inportant as well. So some of the proposed 5 those out for you there so you could | ook at themfor
6 changes that you'll see may not seemthat significant, 6 longer than just the time they appear here on the
7 but they were, we believe, inportant enough to propose. 7 screen, but they are related to the provisions of the
8 The second bullet is removing the reference to 8 Conprehensive Plan as any Text Amendment woul d need to
9 certificate of need, whichis in the actual standards in 9 be. There are several that this proposal isinline
10 4.2.29. There's a phrase at the beginning of 4.2.29, 10 within our Cornerstone 2020 Conprehensive Pan. And so
11 which is on page 3 of 4 of your staff report, that 11 based on the information in the staff report and the
12 begins with "Facilities requiring a certificate or need 12 testinony and evidence that's provided at this public
13 issued by the Comonweal th of Kentucky including 13 hearing, the P anning Comm ssion must recomrend to Metro
14 hospital s" and sone other stuff. That certificate of 14 Qouncil that the Text Anendments that are being
15 need is astate-run thing and there are sone facilities 15 discussed be forwarded with a recommendation for
16 that require certificates of need by statute and sone 16 approval, approval with nodifications, or denial. And
17 that don't and so to clear that up, we have just 17 1'Il just underscore again, this isn't about -- just
18 proposed removing that requirement because there's some 18 like with the (Inaudible) just as any other Text
19 types of things that you woul d think were clinics that 19  Amendrent, this isn't about any specific site. It's
20 don't need a certificate of need. Then they wouldn't 20 about setting the framework for the future, you know
21 even be eligible for approval. Then we'd have a whol e 21 clinics that would be established in Metro. This
22 other set of interpretations needing to make that. That 22 doesn't apply to the other cities within he area that
23 probably woul dn't' be helpful. So we proposed to renove 23 have zoning authority like Saint Matthews or Hurstbourne
24 the phrase, "facilities requiring a certificate of 24 or any of those. They would have to adopt these or
25 need," as acriteriafor being eligible for a 25 simlar regulations if they want to address this issue.
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1 1'Il be happy to take any questions you might have. 1 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Mari | yn?
2 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.  Conmi ssi oner s? 2 OOW SSIONER LEWS: | have a coupl e of
3 OQOMWM SSICNER SMTH | have a questi on. 3 questions. Inthis definition, it says "Aclinic that
4 OOW SS ONER JARBCE:  Emma? 4 treats persons addicted to controlled substances as a
5 OQOMWM SSICNER SMTH Are peopl e who are 5 primary function." Does the word "controlled
6 seeking a nethadone treatment, are they classified as 6 substances" cover every incident that these type clinics
7 disabled under the Americans with Disabilities Act? 7 would service? Is that an all-enconpassing phrase?
8 MR MBRY: M understanding is yes. 8 MR MMBRY: So you're talking about in the
9 QOW SSIONER SMTH  Ckay. 9 definition for nedical clinic, there's a proposed
10 MR MBRY: They are as soneone addicted to a 10 addition that says, "This termincludes" drug is
11 drug that is seeking a treatment, they would be 11 stricken -- "clinics that treat persons addicted to
12 considered to have a disability and so there would be 12 persons addicted to controlled substances as a prinary
13 protections involved | egally. 13 function." So controlled substances -- | don't know if
14 OOW SSIONER SMTH (kay.  And when you say 14 alcohol is considered a controlled substance.
15  you observed the clinic operation, okay, they go in and 15 MR TOMES Sure.
16 they get their dose of methadone. Is there any fol | ow 16 MR MABRY: But there are |aws about al cohol ,
17 up tothat? Do they go and sit down and soneone 17 so sonething |ike al cohol treatment, if there were a
18 observes themor do they just drink it and | eave or 18 nedical and I'mnot 100 percent sure, but if there were
19 MR MABRY: \Wéll, when we were there, there 19 nedical treatments to treat al coholismother than
20 wvere no patients there. There may have been a privacy 20 counseling and things like that, truly Iike medical,
21 issue or whatever -- 21 physiol ogical treatnents about al cohol addiction, then |
22 COWM SSIONER SMTH  Yeah. 22 believe it should fall under that phrase as well.
23 MR MBRY: -- so we were there afterwards -- 23 M5. LEWS. Ckay. And then the second
24 COW SSIONER SMTH  Uh- huh. 24 question up there under those bullet points -- the third
25 MR MBRY: -- and just kind of got a tour and 25 bullet about "address outdoor loitering." M experience
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1 aconversation with the counsel or there. [|'mwoul dn't 1 just indriving by some of these clinics are there's a
2 be able to speak 100 percent with confidence to howit's 2 lot of people outside smoking, which | guess | would put
3 monitored. | just knowthey come in and they get their 3 inthe category of loitering. This seens to address
4 dose and there is sone like, urine testing involved and 4 that there'll be an indoor waiting roomenough to
5 things of that nature. But | do believe it's a rather 5 accommodate, but | assume they're not going to be able
6 quick -- you know relatively quick in and out whenever 6 to smoke in there, so should there be sone accomnmodation
7 apatient isthere to get their dosage. 7 for smoking or not smoking on that property?
8 COWMSSONER SMTH  Yes. |'ve seen the 8 MR MBRY: | woul d assune that as well, that
9 lines, you know, outside these facilities and I'mjust 9 there wouldn't be smoking in the indoors. | don't know
10 trying to understand their procedures as to why all 10 how much Zoning can get into setting smoking areas or
11 these peopl e are standing, you know, in line and -- 11 showi ng where smoking can take place or not, so | don't
12 MR MABRY: There may be someone associ ated 12 knowif there's anything that the Land Devel opnent Code
13 wvith the treatment industry that might be able to speak 13 can do about that.
14 to that. 14 M5, LEWS | assume we'll hear about that if
15 COW SSIONER SMTH Ckay. 15 it's a conditional use permt during a public hearing?
16 DR BAKER Yeah. And Brian's right. | think 16 MR MABRY: Rght. And naybe something |
17 there' |l be some additional testinmony that'll talk about 17 should clarify that | didn't even nention so | should
18 that fromspeakers that are here today, but | can tell 18 say the proposal is to keep the current schene of
19 you that there are peak hours when those that seek 19 clinics being conditional uses throughout any zoning
20 treatment -- specifically, inthe am hours, inthe 20 district. There's not a change proposed for that. There
21 nmorning, because they go get their dosage prior to goi ng 21 are conditional use pernits across the board for any
22 to work, so everyone that is on the first shift would 22 zoning restriction.
23 likely go, and you see lines at 6:00, 7:00, 800 a.m so 23 QCOW SSIONER JARBCE:  John?
24 they seek treatment and they get it and then they go to 24 MW SSONER  Brian, it"'s obvious you-all put
25 work so 25 awhole lot of work into this anendment. Two qui ck
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1 questions. Does the term"clinic" -- is that out 1 would want to have nore clear parameters on how cl ose
2 conpletely or does that stay in? 2 they would need to be in terns of feet or blocks. Since
3 MR MBRY: The proposal is "nedical clinic" 3 thisis aconditional use pernmt, then there's nmore
4 and the background on that change -- 4 wviggle roomor gray area to where the Board of Zoning
5 COW SSIONER Ch, but the term-- 5 adjustment when they're considering a case by case, site
6 MR MABRY: Yeah. 6 by site basis, considering the surroundings of the
7 COW SSONER  -- "clinic" by itself, that 7 property, considering public testimony. They would be
8 will be renoved entirely? 8 the ones who deternine, you know, based on all that, an
9 MR MBRY: It's "medical clinic." Sothe 9 appropriate or reasonabl e amount of parking.
10 proposal is to change the defined termin 1.2.2 from 10 QCOW SSIONER JARBCE: And perhaps | can
11 clinic to medical clinic and to change the headi ng and 11 respond, too. | mean, | think | do share some of your
12 any tine it's mentioned in 4.2.29. It's currently 12 sane concerns, Conm ssioner Tones, because based on what
13 worded as "hospitals, clinics, and other nedical 13 Brian just said, we need to be careful with the exercise
14 facilities" to just say "hospitals and medical clinics." 14 of said discretion. Another termin that bullet point
15 And | was going to say |'mnot 100 percent sure on the 15 is what's considered near and then reasonabl e access.
16 history of that nuance of having nedical clinic in there 16 Wat |'mworried about is using that as a way to not
17 as part of the term but | believe it was an attenpt for 17 permt a certain facility to locate and perhaps we
18 just further clarification in sone way. 18 should I ook at what we believe is reasonable or what is
19 OOW SSICNER - How woul d a sponsor  det er ni ne 19  considered near just soit's not open ended in a way
20 the size of awaiting area? What criteria would they 20 that we coul d use that provision to say hey, well, we
21 use? 21 don't believe you're near enough, SO we're not going to
22 MR MABRY: There are Kentucky Adninistrative 22 permt your facility to locate.
23 Riules -- provisions related to how many patients per 23 DR BAKER Yes. And in other regul ations, as
24 counsel or there can be, so | would inagine that that 24 you know there have been conplaints that because of
25 would cone into play as to how many counsel ors are on 25 language like this, all of these sorts of things get put
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1 staff, and there's also building code requirenents about 1 inacertain part of tow or whatever, you know and
2 waiting areas and assenbly areas as well. 2 excluded fromareas of town, too, so | agree with you.
3 QOW SSIONER - Thank you. 3\ have to be careful.
4 OOW SSI ONER JARBCE:  Davi d? 4 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.  Anyone el se?
5 OOW SSIONER TOMES:  Yes.  Just kind of 5 Chief Garlson?
6 following up on Marilyn's question alittle bit. [I've 6 QOW SSIONER CARLSON The Metro Qrdi nance
7 had a good bit of experience with ADA rules and ny 7 talked about hours of operation, security plan,
8 understanding woul d be that these patients are a 8 insurance requirenents. Wuld those issues be tal ked
9 protected class and we require everybody to go outside 9 about during the conditional use permt process?
10 to snmoke in other buildings, so | don't think we can say 10 MR MBRY: | believe they may. | guess we
11 you got to snoke inside in this building. So | don't 11 could probably rely on what M. Baker just said as being
12 know how you control the loitering outside of smoking, 12 careful about using other things as a way to deny
13 but at least to snoke, | think they have to go outside 13 something, but, you know, usually, the Board of Zoning
14 and that right would be protected. | had one conment or 14 Adjustnent can ask about those type of things on many
15 one question under bullet point 4. | always get 15 other uses. So, you know | would think they night be
16 troubled by what's reasonabl e and unreasonable. Were 16 fair game for aclinic as vell.
17 it says "reasonabl e access to public transportation” as 17 QCOW SSIONER CARLSON Thank you.
18 adefinition of what's required for Iocation of clinics 18 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.  Conmi ssi oner s,
19 and hospital s and knowi ng that we don't have public 19 any other questions? Brian, | just had one. | just
20 transportation throughout the community, that could be 20 want to know does this have any -- since we're changi ng
21 anissue, and so if you could kind of help ne either 21 the wording inthis, thisis going to affect all
22 define reasonabl e or put sone light on (Inaudible). 22 different nedical clinics all around the Metro, correct?
23 MR MABRY: VEéll, if we were proposing these 23 It's kind of setting a one size fits all the nedical
24 to be permtted by right wthout a conditional use 24 clinics?
25 permt, | think that would be nore problematic. Ve 25 MR MMBRY: Rght nowfor -- yeah.
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1 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Have we thought about 1 MR MABRY: Correct. That doesn't change.
2 any unintended consequences to those kind of nedical 2 QOW SSSONER  Thank you.
3 clinics that are already in existence? Are they going 3 OOW SSIONER HOMRD: Vel I, | have a question
4 to have to make any changes to what they're doing 4 then.
5 because of this Text Arendnent change? 5 OOW SSONER JARBCE:. 0 ahead.
6 MR MBRY: They woul d be a nonconformng use 6 QCOW SSIONER HOMRD:  In the ordinance, it
7 and protected under the Nonconfornming Use Rule so that 7 said nmethadone clinics may be allowed in the M, M, MB,
8 they could continue operating and then if they were to 8 and EZL district, so that doesn't include those?
9 take on any kind of expansion that woul d trigger 9 MR MBRY: No. You know, that's the Council
10 conditional use permt review then they woul d have to 10 ordinance that was passed in Novenber, and that's the
11 conply or seek waivers or variances. 11 direction that the sponsors wanted to go, but as we
12 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay. | was just kind 12 looked at it and | ooked at the ADA issues invol ved, we
13 of curious on how burdensone this is going to be for 13 do not believe that that's the way that we need to go.
14 those clinics that have been operating lawfully and | 14 OOW SSIONER HOMRD: So they' re going to have
15 don't know enough to -- 15 to prepare an new ordi nance?
16 MR MBRY: Yeah. 16 MR MBRY: Rght. | nean, they would anyway
17 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: -- to say. | just was 17 because this will be an ordi nance.
18 curious about what the process is. 18 OOW SSI ONER HOMRD: Ckay.  Thank you.
19 COW SSIONER  Yeah. Brian is correct in that 19 MR MABRY: Yeah.
20 that would fall under the definition of medical clinic 20 OOW SSON TOMES:  And Lula, typically, we --
21 and the zoning context woul d be protected under 21 that was passed as an ordinance, but typically, we see
22 Nonconformng Use R ghts, and they would not -- unless 22 that inthe formof aresolution. Basically, that's the
23 they enlarged the scope or area of their facility, they 23 Qouncil directing the Planning Comission to | ook at the
24 wouldn't have to cone into conpliance with these new 24 issue and, through state statute, for any reg change to
25 regul ations. 25 the text, we've got to do, you know, the due process
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1 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.  Thank you. All 1 public hearing, which we're currently having.
2 right. No other questions? Qiff? 2 OOW SSIONER HOMRD: That's okay.  Thank you
3 QOW SSIONER TURNER (| naudi bl e) . 3 because | was seeing a little discrimnation in here.
4 M MABRY: Not many. There's the one Metro 4 Thank you.
5 runs that we visited and ny rough guess i s nmaybe two or 5 OOW SS ONER JARBCE: Ckay.  Anything el se?
6 three nore. | could be woefully short, but ny guess is 6 Al right. W'l nove to our first speaker. V¢ have
7 four to five at the nost probably. 7 David Davidson.
8 QOW SSI ONER JARBCE:  Turn your i crophone on 8 M DAVIDSON  (od afternoon. M nane is
9 there, Aiff, please. 9 David Davidson. |'man attorney fromQovington. M.
10 OOW SSIONER TURNER -~ ALl of  t hem gover nent 10 Baker and | spoke about this and |'ve had a chance to
11 offices? 11 work with sone of the peopl e who put these proposal s
12 MR MABRY: | knowfor sure -- 12 together for you to consider, and I'd like to address a
13 OOW SSICONER TURNER | nean, private? 13 fewissues for you and take any questions that you mght
14 MR MBRY: -- the Mre facility is and naybe 14 have. The first, nost inportant thing that | think you
15 sone of themare sort of nonprofit or, you know quasi- 15 need to look at and to know about this -- well, let ne
16 public. | knowone of the geneses of these regul ations 16 back up alittle bit and tell you exactly why M. Baker
17 wes the potential private, for profit methadone clinic 17 called me. In Covington, we have a for profit methadone
18 that was proposing to open in a strip center. That 18 clinic. V¢ fought this fight in 2002 when | first
19 mght be one that possibly a person fromthe public 19 represented a conpany that cane to Covington |ooking to
20 night be able to better elaborate on, but ny guess is 20 openafor profit clinic. Qovington i mediately changed
21 not very nany. 21 their zoning ordinance to ban all nethadone clinics from
22 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.  The first person 22 anywhere in the city. W sued them W& won. The Sxth
23 that we have to speak -- oh, I'msorry. John? 23 drcuit Court of Appeals, the Fourth Grcuit Court of
24 COW SSIONER  These nedical clinics woul d be 24 Appeals, the Third Arcuit, and nowthe Nnth Grcuit
25 allowed in any zoning district? 25 have al| said you cannot treat nethadone clinics any
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1 differently than you do any other kind of clinic. If 1 others here today can tell you nore about how ret hadone
2 the desireis -- and | think | saw some of this in the 2 clinics are operated, but ny experience is that there
3 ordinance that was passed -- to single out nethadone 3 are two ways people will conme to the nethadone clinic.
4 clinics, | think you'll find yourself in a probl emand 4 As M. Baker said, the first way is they're on their way
5 that you have to treat this kind of treatment program 5 towork, soif someone's starting a first shift at
6 for this particular disease just as you woul d any ot her 6 Proctor and Ganble at 7:00 in the morning, they're at
7 nmedical problem So this attorney's opinion, you need 7 the nethadone clinic at 6:00 in the morning when -- by
8 totreat methadone clinics just like you would wei ght 8 bus or however they get there. They walk in, they get
9 loss clinics, dialysis clinics, any other kind of 9 their dose, they go out, and they're on their way to
10 clinics that you have. You know better. M. Baker 10 work. They're not in or out for any length of tine, and
11 knows better than | do about regulating land use and 11 really should not be loitering in the parking lot at
12 what you can take into consideration with that. Parking 12 all, whether to snoke or anything el se. They shoul d not
13 seens to be to be one of those things, the frequency and 13 be loitering there. The other thing is that each one of
14 the use of the buildings, et cetera. But long and short 14 these peopl e who are taking nethadone are required to
15 of itis, | thinkit's a nmstake and that there's cases 15 nmeet with counsel ors over a period of tine. Exactly how
16 | can stack up pretty high that say that if you single 16 often and for howlong, 1'mnot capable of telling you
17 out nethadone clinics, that you'll have a problem 17 right now | think some of the others behind me wll.
18 Second is | think if you start talking about sole -- not 18  But when those people are in the nethadone clinic seeing
19 just nmethadone, but any particular kind of treatnent for 19  counselors, well, they're not going to be able to smoke
20 any particular kind of disease that you're not 20 inside, but even so, there shoul d be some regul ation of
21 regulating land use that you're getting into the 21 that parking lot, so that there aren't people standing
22 bailiwick of some of the other fol ks who are going to 22 around. There were questions about standing in |ine,
23 testify here today. Medical doctors, they're the ones 23 and | can't renenber whi ch Conmissioner asked the
24 that know about what is the proper treatnent, no 24 question. M experience in Covington and where |'ve
25 lawyers, not land use people. Wat is the proper kind 25 seenit is sonetimes you'll see outside of AA neetings,
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1 of treatment? Is it in-house treatment programs? Is it 1 sonetinmes you' |l see outside of intensive outpatient
2 nethadone? Is it a 12-step progran? Wat isit? | 2 treatment progranms where people are actually in these
3 don't know | don't think you can regulate that through 3 buildings for hours at atinme, that in a break they'll
4 the zoning process. The last thing | would like to 4 all cone out and snoke cigarettes, right? That's what
5 point out to you, and then I'mgoing to try and address 5 you're looking at for people who are standing outside.
6 sone of the concerns that were addressed. Mt hadone 6 | don't think that will exist at all ina properly run
7 clinics can only be opened after they have been approved 7 nethadone clinic. The last thing | woul d say, the
8 by the Sate Narcotics Board. Wen the presentation was 8 pictures that were shown are of -- | don't want to say -
9 nade and citations were addressed to KAR Kentucky 9 - it's anethadone clinic that's been in operation for a
10 Adninistrative Regul ations, those are things that the 10 good period of tine. The nmethadone clinic that |
11 NMNarcotics Board requires any nethadone clinic to do 11 represent in Qovington today has been open for about
12 before they open. So sone of the things that were 12 three years. Wiat they did was take over an ol d grocery
13 addressed in the bullet points and that are nowin the 13 store near an industrial area, and it's big, it's open,
14 amendments, such as having enough space inside the 14 it'sclean. It's got plenty of parking. People walk in.
15 building to accomodate peopl e, such as regul ating and 15 There's a big roomfor everyone to stand in line.
16 nonitoring the parking lot outside the building, that's 16  Nobody needs to stand outside. They walk through. They
17 already required by the Sate Narcotics Board. So you 17 goupto awndow They get their dose. They take it.
18 don't have to worry too mich about who's going to 18 They open their mouth to show that they' ve consuned it,
19 regulate this. The Sate MNarcotics Board is all over 19 and they're back out the door, and they're gone. And
20 these folks, both the nonprofit and the profit people. | 20 it'saclean, big, smoothly operating facility. | don't
21 know that there's sone distaste for the for profit 21 think you're going to find any of the long |ines
22 clinics, but this is Averica, and people, when they have 22 outside, and if there is any kind of loitering in the
23 an opportunity, get to have a -- if there's a profit to 23 parking lot, it's aregulatory thing that I think the
24 be nade, they can make it. There were sone specific 24 Sate Narcotics Board can take care of. (he of the
25 concerns that were addressed, one was about snoking. And 25 reasons that the methadone clinic in Govington opened is
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1 that there was a nethadone clinic in southeast Indiana 1 enables themto be productive and functioning menbers of
2 up by Lawenceburg that was huge and poorly run and that 2 society. Inthe same way that 25 or 30 years A DS was
3 people vere getting harassed. The State Narcotics Board 3 considered a stigma, that's what's going on with opioid
4 in Indiana was harassing them Nobody wanted anything to 4 addiction right now and Kentucky has a huge probl em
5 dowththem They wanted to cone over to Kentucky 5 withit -- huge. There are 220 counties that COC has
6 where it's properly run, where things coul d be done 6 saidareripefor an hepatitis Cor an AlDS outbreak
7 well. Wen they're operated properly, when they're 7 because of the needl e-sharing that goes on with heroin;
8 regulated well, these things can be a benefit and not a 8 55 of themare in Kentucky. So this is an inportant
9 detriment. And if you have any questions -- |'mtrying 9 thing. Questions were raised about how the nethadone
10 to address things. | knowl've got five mnutes. | 10 clinics are regulated. They're regul ated by both the
11 don't know where | am 11 federal and state governments, and in Kentucky, our
12 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Wé're going to et 12 regulations are considerably tighter than the federal
13 everybody who's speaking in support and then we have 13 regulations are. The requirenents are that during the
14 questions; we'll bring you back up. 14 first 90 days of treatment in a nethadone clinic, there
15 COW SSIONER TOMES: Al right. Very good. 15  nust be weekly counseling session, random weekly drug
16 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Thank you. 16 screens to make sure they're taking the medication, and
17 MR DM DSN  Thank you. 17 that all dosing has to occur on-site. The counsel ors
18 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Next, we have speakers, 18 who work with these patients have to be |icensed or
19 Joann Schulte. 19 certified by the Kentucky A cohol and Drug Gounseling
20 M5. SCHLTE (ood afternoon. |'mDr. Joann 20 Qedentialing Board, and there has to be at |east one
21 Shulte. I'mthe Director of the Louisville Mtro 21 counsel or for every 40 patients. The facility has to
22 Departnent of Health and VEllness, and we're in support 22 have a nedical director who is a |icensed psychiatrist
23 of this amendment for several reason. (nhe is that we 23 or who is certified by the American Society of Addiction
24 believe that methadone prograns be they run by the 24 Medicine. In other words, board certified physicians
25 health department or privately funded and nonprofit and 25 who deal with this issue. And, in Kentucky, their state
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1 government clinics are part of the full range of 1 regulations do create sufficient oversight to make sure
2 treatment options that are needed to conbat the current 2 that there are qualified clinicians who are providing
3 opioid epidemc, and if you want to think about why 3 the services, but the issue is the demand for the
4 people need treatnent, |et nme give you a couple of 4 services is mich nore than is currently available. So
5 nunbers. There are at least 600 to 700 peopl e a month, 5 if you can see and the Aty can anend how things are
6 based on interviews |'ve done in this city in the |ast 6 done here so that the nethadone clinics are treated as
7 six nonths, that seek treatment every month. V@ need 7 nmedical clinics, you will be helping alot of people who
8 the clinics and we need themto be available so that 8 need treatment, and it's an epidemc. Thank you.
9 people can stay alive. Qherwise, we're going to have 9 OOW SSIONER TOMES:  Thank you. |'s anyone
10 issues like we did |ast year where we have al nost 300 10 else here to speak in support of this Text Amendnent?
11  opioid overdose deaths. This is a chronic illness that 11 Cone forward. You're okay. VeIl get the formfrom
12 needs to be treated and this regul ation of methadone 12 you. Just give us your nane and address, please.
13 clinics as nedical clinics is inportant if we're going 13 DR NATION H. [I'mDr. Lori Nation. |
14 to keep people alive. The problemwth peopl e who are 14 practice in Mddl etown, Kentucky. |'ma psychiatrist
15 addicted to heroin or other opiocids is that it's a 15 that has worked as medical director for many of the
16 chronic condition. It changes your brain. Sone peopl e 16 facilities across Kentucky. Everywhere from Paducah to
17 can get off of those drugs with the 12-step abstinence- 17 Pikeville, 1've worked there. So | have a lot of
18 based program but Louisville needs to do some grow ng 18  experience working in this field and with people with
19 upinterns of the medication-assisted treatnent 19  substance use disorders. And over the last 13 years,
20 prograns, one of which is nethadone -- are options to 20 |'ve seen so many changes across the state, and I'm
21 help keep people alive and have |ives. The peopl e who 21 really excited that you-all are having an open-ninded
22 are showing up at the Mre Center or out in Saint 22 dialogue about this. It's really wonderful for ne to
23 Matthews at the Center for Behavioral Health are able to 23 see that. 1've been banished in different communities
24 keep their lives because they' re on nedication-assisted 24 for wanting to provide treatment. It's been kind of
25 treatnent. It enables themnot to deteriorate. It 25 interesting to now see everyone |ike, so excited about
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1 this issue. | would be happy to answer any questions 1 Journal. As far as terminology inthis, | would just
2 about treatment. Some of the questions that were raised 2 like to say that persons addicted -- we use substance
3 are concerning because they're about the loitering and 3 use disorders for that now And there's so nany
4 driving by the facilities. | just want to be clear that 4 regulatory bodies for the one for profit facility that
5 there is a problemand a backup because there are not 5 is already in Louisville and the nonprofit facility that
6 enough facilities. There's only one in Louisville, one 6 won't be classifiedinthis, as they're a governnent
7 for profit facility. So everyone that needs treatnent 7 facility, that you're regulated by the ACDE -- that's
8 is concentrated in this facility, and it doesn't take 8 the Acohol and Gther Drug Entity in Kentucky -- DEA
9 soneone that owns a business to understand howthis is 9 the State Narcotics Authority and CSAD from-- on a
10 going to work. If you have other good providers cone 10 federal level, so there are a lot of regulations that
11 in, you're going to lessen that burden and give people 11 are already in place. So sone of the issues that you're
12 access to care that they can't currently get in our 12 discussing are already nanaged el sewhere. So | would
13 community. You have to open | ess than one Courier 13 like to encourage you not to single out any group
14 Journal to see the overdoses that are happening right 14 because we're past that. \ realize that everyone needs
15 now It's amazing. It's staggering, as a psychiatrist, 15 help, and as was said earlier, we can't single themout,
16 to see this in ny own community. And everything, you 16 according to the ADA so all the termnol ogy's changed
17 know, is so dangerous right now because people that are 17 so that it doesn't look |ike you're singling themout,
18 buying it, they're not buying it to get high anynore; 18 but exactly what you're doing is singling out people
19 they're buying it to keep frombeing sick. And then 19 that need treatnent. So | would just encourage you to
20 they get it and there's an el ephant tranquilizer init. 20 keep an open nmind and treat these people as anyone el se
21 So, | nean, if we can do anything, it's to get the 21 that has a nedical condition and allow nore facilities,
22 people that are dealing off the streets and have access 22 and as Louisville, the conpassionate city, let's reach
23 to care for people that need it. | have a psychiatry 23 out ahand and | ook at facilities across the nation that
24 office in Mddletown. | amoverrun with people calling 24 are doing a good job and say please, cone to Louisville;
25 because they know that | treat addiction. And substance 25 we need your help instead of saying well, if you'rein
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1 use disorders are so common right nowthat ny facility 1 30 feet of the property line, we mght be able to
2 is-- 1 mean, we get 20 calls a day frompeopl e wanting 2 consider you or giving themmore hurdlies to junp over.
3 toget their kids into treatnent, and | woul d have to 3 Ve really need help in our community and we need to nake
4 have a problemif | thought that | had to be 30 feet 4 it so that anyone would be willing and excited to
5 fromany property line. | don't even understand this in 5 practice in Louisville. Thank you.
6 theregulation. It's interesting because when you pick 6 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Thank you.  Anyone el se
7 all these things out, obviously, it's there to target 7 here to speak in support of the Text Amendnent? Ckay.
8 these facilities, and I'mreal |y appreciative of the 8 Hearing none, Conm ssioners, questions? |s there anyone
9 attorney fromQovington that cane because | watched as 9 else -- Conmissioners, questions? Qiff, go ahead.
10 this whol e scenario unfol ded. You can't target these 10 Qiff?
11 facilities. | nean, when's the last tine you-all net to 11 QOW SSIONER TUIR\ER ~ The young | ady fromthe
12 discuss a diabetic facility with people needing insulin? 12 health department, did you say there has been 300 peopl e
13 It's just treating people a different way. And these 13 who have died in Louisville?
14 are the people that are the nost depressed in our 14 DR SCHUTE About 300 people died of heroin
15 comunity and need the nost help. If we are doing 15 overdose last year in Louisville.
16 anything, we should be rolling out red carpet for every 16 OOW SSIONER TURNER - Ch, herai n.
17 national facility that's willing to relocated and to 17 DR SCHLTE VYeah. Yeah.
18 have an office in Louisville. W need the help. V¢ 18 QOW SSIONER TUR\ER ~ Maybe you can hel p ne
19 need facilities opening up, and we can't all stand by 19 then. Explain the difference.
20 and go not in ny back yard. They need to be everywhere. 20 DR SHULTE Pardon ne?
21 V¢ need to have open access, and any good facility will 21 OCOW SSIONER TUR\ER  Maybe i f you can explain
22 pronote that because no one is scared of conpetition 22 the difference between -- I'mnot famliar with --
23 wvhen they do a good job. \¢ realize, unfortunately, the 23 DR SCHLTE (h, between nethadone and
24 demand is there, and we need access or otherw se, we 24 heroin?
25 just keep seeing the statistics every day in the Gourier 25 W SSONR TIRER  Yes. QO isit a
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1 difference? 1 patients, clients, whatever the --
2 DR SCHLTE Véll, nethadone is considered a 2 DR SCHLTE Véll, | think one of the
3 nedical-assisted treatment that neets the standards of a 3 liniting factors on it are the nunber of patients that
4 licensed drug. Heroinis onthe DEA's list of Schedul e 4 anindividual clinic canseeis, in part, based on that
5 1, for which there's considered no nedical use. The 5 one drug and al cohol counsel or can only see 40 patients
6 issue becones, however, that once you're addicted to an 6 for nethadone. That's --
7 opioid drug or heroin, your brain chemstry changes and 7 OCOW SSIONER CARLSON | guess where 1'm
8 not everybody can get off of it wthout replacing the 8 headed -- if | had some idea of how many patients woul d
9 heroin with a medical -assisted treatment, and nethadone 9 beonsiteat any one given tine, | was going to throw
10 is one of those. There are sonme others as wvell. 10 out a suggestion for a mnimmsize waiting area. For
11 COW SSIONER TURNER  And the treatment is 11 exanple, if you have 10 patients on site, the building
12 liquid forn? Is that in both? 12 and fire code (Inaudible) about seven square feet per
13 DR SHLTE Just a minute. It's by nouth. 13 person, so | was going to suggest --
14 OOW SSIONER TURNER - Ckay.  Thank you. 14 DR SCHLTE Yeah. S, | think that's hard
15 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Chi ef Carl son? 15 for ne to address, and part of that depends on how many
16 OOMWM SSICNER CARLSON I'1] read all ny 16  counsel ors you nmight have or be able to have, and |
17 questions and whoever wants to answer them fine. How 17 think there's a lot of variation in what the size of the
18 many peopl e woul d be on site at any one given time? Hw 18 clinicis. The attorney who spoke earlier from
19 longis the typical stay fromthe time a person walks in 19  Qovington tal ked about the size that they have in their
20 the door until they're finished and one their way? And 20 facility, and so part of it depends on what your
21 then the last question is are the visits by appointnent 21 individual clinic goes after. | realize that's not the
22 only or is it a case where they show up whenever? 22 conplete answer you want, but | don't think | can give
23 DR SCHULTE | think how an individual clinic 23 you a black and white answer because the size of a
24 operates wll be to sone extent determned both what the 24 clinic and the patient |oad can vary.
25 state lawrequires and what their provisions are, and 25 QCOW SSIONER JARBCE: Cone on up.  Cone on up,
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1 part of it will depend upon the capacity of the clinic. 1 please.
2 The Mre Center is licensed to have a maxi numof about 2 DR NATICN The Al cohol and Gher Drug Entity
3 200 patients, and the requirements are that there be one 3 requirement has a list of those provisions, so every
4 licensed drug and al cohol counselor for every 40 4 clinic has to go through that already with the ACDE
5 patients, so there's kind of an upper linit on that. The 5 license so
6 way the dose unit works is that they cone in and they 6 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Yeah. | think what
7 get their dose. It's watched to see that they take it, 7 Chief Carlson's trying to get at is that we hope that
8 and then they leave. They stay longer for a period of 8 all kinds of people will come to the clinic to get that,
9 time once a week when there's counseling to see how 9 but you mght start seeing sone problens with |oitering
10 things are going, what other factors mght be going on 10 if the waiting area is too snall for the nunber of
11 intheir lives. And you had a third question. ['m 11 people that are coming in for these visits, right?
12 sorry. | don't renenber that part. 12 DR NATICN  True.
13 OOWM SSICONER CARLSON Are these visits by 13 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: | think that's what he's
14 appointment only or do people -- 14 asking is that --
15 DR SCHLTE Hang on. 15 DR NATICN  And for people waiting on nedical
16 OOW SSIONER CARLSON -~ cone by to -- 16 appointments -- they' re by appointment when the nedi cal
17 DR SCHULTE By appointnent only at the Mre 17 director is on site.
18 Center, and | believe that to be the case at the other 18 COW SSI ONER JARBCE: | mean, | would think a
19 centers, but | think the other speakers woul d be better 19 normal visit to ny doctor when | go in there and there's
20 asked to address that since | don't operate their -- we 20 35 people sitting inthe waiting, they re already over
21 don't -- Health Departments don't operate those clinics. 21 that limt, soit just depends on what the enforcenent
22 OOW SSI ONER CARLSON Yeah. | -- 22 side of that is, right?
23 DR SHULTE Ckay. 23 DR SCHLTE And | think the other thing you
24 OOMM SSI ONER CARLSON Whoever can answer the 24 need to realize is that when they're nmaking these daily
25 question. I'mstill trying to nail down how nany 25 visits, it'saninand out thing. It's not the waiting
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1 roomthat you're thinking of like if youre going to see 1 profit ones are going to try to get nore clients, nore
2 your doctor for your high blood pressure nedicine or 2 patients. There's no question about it. Andif the
3 sonething. It's get the nethadone treatnment as it's 3 concernis -- yours has 200 people. You know if you
4 observed and then you | eave. And they'|l be there 4 have for profit, they're going to have nore than 200
5 somewhat |onger when they have to have the weekly 5 people. They're going to. That's why you need to rely
6 counseling. 6 on-- the Sate MNarcotics Board is the prinary one that
7 OOW SSIONER CARLSON So we' re tal king about 7 1've been exposed to that regulates the use. Now the
8 very fewpeople at any one given tine then? 8 onein Qovington is about five blocks away fromthe
9 DR SCHULTE That woul d be ny assessment. 9 police station. Quisers going up and down the street
10 Yes. 10 all thetine. But there's a security -- there are two
11 MR DMDSON The for profit center in 11  people in there during those hours to make sure that
12 Qovington right now has, | think, about 900 clients, and 12 nobody's standing in the parking | ot, nobody. So, |
13 | could be wong. | think, working off the top of ny 13 mean, one thing is what do we do to set this up so that
14 head, you have to have one medical director for every 14 it works. The second is after we've set it up, how do
15 300 clients and she's right about a counsel or for every 15 we regul ate -- you know, how do we police it, and, you
16 40. Sothat's alot of folks. But the 900 people that 16  know, the policing question is something that just needs
17 come in each day, they're in; they're out. | nean, 17  to be addressed later and make sure the Narcotics Board
18 you're talking faster than -- at the stop and go, faster 18 is doing their job and if they' re not, | think everybody
19 than -- you know, you walk in, if there's aline it's 19 her is politically active enough, you know where to
20 not going long. And the one in Covington, you walk in. 20 conplain and howto conplain. (kay. Anything el se?
21 There are six wndows, and you can go to any one of the 21 OOW SSI ONER CARLSON Just a qui ck fol I ow up.
22 six windows. Their prine timeis from6:00 in the 22 Aeclinics a 24 hour a day operation or do they have
23 nmorning until about 9:00 in the norning. People are on 23 fixed tines?
24 their way to work. Somebody stops in. They go in. They 24 MR DAVIDSON I'msorry. Say that again.
25 gotoawndow Thereis a person behind the w ndow 25 OQOW SSIONER CARLSON Are clinics 24 hour a
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1 that adnministers the dose, nmakes sure they' ve taken it, 1 day operations or do they open up at a certain tine of
2 and then they just turn around and walk out. | don't 2 day and close at a certain time of day?
3 think they're in there -- they're not even in there five 3 MR DAVIDSON No.  Any experience that |'ve
4 minutes. 4 had, no 24 hour a day operations. The one in Covington
5 DR SCHLTE Except when they have 5 opens at 6:00 inthe norning, like | said, but I think
6 counseling. 6 they're done by 5:00. It's much nore of the business
7 M DMDSN Rght. Wen they have 7 day orientation. Again, that's because it's al most
8 counseling, then it might be sonething nore |ike what 8 entirely related to getting peopl e working.
9 you were tal king about, Commissioner Jarboe, where 9 OOW SSI ONER CARLSON Thank youl.
10 somebody is waiting |ike your doctor's appointnent. But 10 QOW SSIONER TUIR\ER - How many' s i n Covi ngt on?
11 that is by appointment only, and at least in Govington, 11 MR DMDSIN Sir?
12 that happens at all points intine during the day. It's 12 OOW SSIONER TURNER - Nonprofit and for
13 not just during those peak rush hours. In fact, there's 13 profit? Hw many clinics?
14 less of that goes on at least in the way the Govington 14 MR DAVIDSON  The one that |'mrepresenting
15 operation works because they' re processing peopl e 15 isafor profit and they have several |ocations
16  through so they can go to work. | think one of the 16 throughout the state, Maysville, a couple of other
17 things that was mentioned earlier that needs to be 17 places. There are nonprofits, but up in northern
18 renenbered i s people who are addicted, they die. Before 18 Kentucky, | don't know of any. Al the ones that are in
19 they die, they ruin their famly. They ruin thensel ves. 19 northern Kentucky are for profit. Now part of that is
20 And they're a burden on society. Wat the nethadone 20 because we have dncinnati there. The Veterans
21 treatnent does is keep themalive, keep themworking, 21 Adnministration has a nethadone clinic in Qncinnati and
22 keep theminvolved with their fanlies, keep them 22 Hmlton Gounty, dncinnati has its own nethadone that's
23 healthy. | nean, that's a no brainer fromthe people 23 nonprofit, so there are two nonprofits just right across
24 who are on this side of the equation. So how do you do 24 the river. Pardon ne? Only two nonprofits.
25 that? Rght now the methadone clinics -- and the for 25 DR SCHUTE The two nonprofits are the one
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1 that we run with the Louisville Health Department; the 1 the first dose.
2 other's in Lexington. 2 OOW SSIONER JARBCE Ckay.
3 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Lul a. 3 DR NATION The first tine a patient comes
4 QOW SSIONER HOMRD: | have a fol | ow up 4 in, we woul d absol utely want to nonitor them check
5 question. Any of you nay be able to answer this. Is 5 their blood pressure, make sure everything's okay. But
6 this a seven day a week operation? Do you need 6 that isjust the first day. And generally, there's not
7 treatnent seven days a week? 7 aproblemwth people spending tine in the facilities
8 DR SCHLTE Qurs is seven days a week and | 8 after that does. Like | said, we only have narkers for
9 think typically, they are because some people wll work 9 one for profit facility and one non for profit in
10 -- | mean, they'Il work five days a week, but some 10 Louisville, soif we had more access, that woul d
11  people are working on Saturday and Sunday and you have 11 certainly be elininating that issue.
12 -- thisis a daily dosing drug under observation. 12 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: And | woul d assune t hat
13 OOW SSI ONER JARBCE: Bob? 13 because there's onl'y one nonprofit in a city the size of
14 OOW SSI ONER PETERSCN | have a question 14 Louisville, that there's not enough funding through the
15 about -- maybe for the doctor. A heroin addict that 15 health department in order to expand the nunber of these
16 comes to the clinic and then receives treatnent for 16 clinics or are we ready to expand those clinics?
17  nmethadone, is there an average Iength of tine that they 17 DR NATION V& need nore facilities.
18 are on the nethadone to hel p them you know nove 18 COM SSIONER JARBCE: | think that's a
19 through their disease? 19 question for the other doctor?
20 DR NATION That's areally difficult 20 DR NATION V¢ desperately need nore
21 question because each scenario is different because 21 facilities.
22 everyone's used different amounts of tine before they 22 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: (kay.
23 comein and different anounts. Soit's really tailored 23 DR NATION But the fact is that we don't
24 to the individual. 24 need public funding for the facilities. The issue is
25 OOMM SSI ONER PETERSCN Ckay.  And then once a 25 not with the patients being able to afford this because
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1 person is through counseling, through other steps, 1 it's much cheaper than what they're doing on the street.
2 feeling better in their program is there a weaning 2 They actually save money by conming into treatment. It's
3 period to go off of the nethadone to try to go drug free 3 amazing. And we see them and they get their |ives back
4 altogether typically? 4 together. They're able to work and contribute, so, |
5 DR NATION Yes. Patients are tapered off of 5 nean, the fact is we're not waiting on funding. W're
6 the nethadone, but no one ever gets through the 6 waiting on facilities.
7 counseling. It's alifelong process. 7 QCOW SSIONER JARBCE:  Uhderstood.  Thank you.
8 QOW S ONER PETERSON Ckay. 8 DR SCHUTE | would like to echo what she
9 DR NATION -- and lifelong treatnent. 9 saidand | think another issue you need to realizeis
10 OOW SSI ONER PETERSCN Ckay.  Thank you. 10 that until recently, it was inpossible for many peopl e
11 QOMM SSIONER JARBCE: David, did you have a 11 to have the funding to take care of it until the
12 question? Ckay. |'msorry. You |looked |ike you had a 12 Afordable Care Act was changed and that was considered
13 question there. | think one of the reasons why | think 13 atreatment. Before that, people were having to pay out
14 we'retalking alittle bit about the |oitering, what 14 of their pocket and as far as our nethadone clinic, we
15 happens after -- in our reading materials, it actually 15 get $500,000 a year, roughly fromHERSEL (phonetic),
16 saidthat after the methadone is given, that they 16 which is a federal agency, and that's been static and
17  sonetines nonitor themfor one to five hours afterwards. 17 flat for along time. Thereis also, frankly,
18 That's in our reading naterials, so | think that's where 18 discrinmnation against the Mre Center and where it's
19 everybody's kind of talking about where the |oitering 19 located. V¢ would like to expand, but as we've tried to
20 comes in. 20 expand and ve've | ooked at different sites, we've had
21 DR NATION | think there mght be sone 21 realtors say well, we can't put you there; you' |l be too
22 confusion. 22 close to-- and fill inthe blank. There's a
23 QOMM SSI ONER JARBCE:  None of the testinony 23 realization that has to take place for drug therapy
24 has said anything about that. 24 overall is that there's alot of people who are doing
25 DR NATION  There woul d be nonitoring after 25 drugs inalot of bedroons in alot of places in
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1 Jefferson County, but there's a whole lot of not in ny 1 OOW SSI ONER CARLSON | soneone wanted to
2 back yard when it comes to treating the people. 2 openaclinic, they could apply for a waiver on that,
3 Everybody wants their kid to be alive and treated, but 3 correct?
4 they don't really want to worry about anybody el se's 4 MR MABRY: Qorrect.
5 kids, sothere's ninby here. 5 QOW SSIONER CARLSON Ckayy.
6 COW SSIONER JARBCE: Thank you. 6 COW SSI ONER JARBCE:  Davi d?
7 OOW SSICNER TURNER - VI |, what's the average 7 OCOW SSIONER TQMES:  Just one ot her questi on,
8 age of the clients that cone? 8 maybe for one of the proponents here. |'mpresumng you
9 DR SCHULTE | would say 30s, and | think one 9 have people that work midnight shifts, too. You stay
10 of the factors here is that the people who are nost 10 open later for themor where does that cone into play or
11 typically comng into a nethadone programare peopl e 11  do they get their dose at 5:00 and hope to make it
12 whose |ives are stable enough that they haven't ruined 12 through the night?
13 thenselves. You heard some of the other speakers talk 13 DR NATION  Methadone was first used in
14 about how you start out, the prescription drugs are so 14 opiate treatment because of the long half-life. You can
15  expensive, that you end up going into the heroin because 15 dose it once per day and you can achieve a steady state,
16 it's onthe street, it's cheaper, it cones with all 16 soit doesn't matter what tine of the day you dose.
17 kinds of problens with it. They ruin their |ives and 17 OOW SSIONER TOMES:  Ckay.  @ot you.
18 they ruin thensel ves. The peopl e who are in the 18 DR NATICN  You'll achieve a steady state on
19 methadone clinics have stabilized their lives to the 19 it. Sothe shift work doesn't really matter as mich as
20 point that they often have jobs and are enpl oyed and can 20 long as they can get into the facility every day.
21 be contributing menbers of society with nedical assisted 21 OOW SSI ONER TOMES:  Thanks.
22 treatnent. 22 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay, Conmissi oners. |s
23 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Any ot her questions for 23 there anyone el se that's here to speak on this case
24 the speakers? 24 against the Text Avendment? Ckay. MNone. And anybody
25 OOW SSIONER CARLSON The only ot her question 25 other? Anybody el se need to speak on this case? Ckay.
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1 | had was the restrictions on the 30 feet for the 1 Hearing none and no other questions, Comm ssioners, we
2 property lines. Wat was the thinking behind that? | 2 ready to go into business session? Ckay. Chief
3 nmean, is that a necessary restriction? 3 Carlson, would you like to start?
4 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Nornal  zoning, right? 4 OOW SSIONER CARLSON | think in ny |ast
5 MR MBRY: That is an existing regul ation. 5 three years in the fire service, | Made nore calls for
6 I'mnot sure when that woul d have been adopted and what 6 service to heroin and other type drug overdoses than |
7 the rationale was for its adoption, but it's existing. 7 didin the preceding 36 years, so, you know the heroin
8 It's not, you know, underlined, so that woul d signify 8 problemthat we have in our comunity is really bad and
9 that it was new | anguage so existing -- 9 you don't understand it until, you know, you really get
10 OOW SSIONER CARLSON |'s that for sidelines 10 out and see it firsthand. You know, it affects people
11 and rear lines as well? 11 that you woul d never thought it would affect, and so |
12 MR MABRY: | believe it says all property 12 do think that the situation is getting to the point
13 lines, soit would be any front, side, or rear property 13 where we really need to do as nuch as we can to address
14 line. 14 and get people where they're not in this life-
15 OOMM SSICNER CARLSON That's typical ly for 15 threatening overdose situation. You know we see a |ot
16 any nedical clinic? 16 of stuff about Narcan or the drug to counteract
17 MR MABRY: Yep. 17 overdoses being available to pretty mich anybody because
18 OOW SSI ONER CARLSON Ckay. 18 the situation's gotten so bad. And then just kind of
19 MR MABRY: Yep. Any clinic or hospital. 19 getting back into the fire call into things, you know
20 QOMWM SSIONER HOMRD: And not by zoni ng 20 for every tine somebody has an overdose, if the fire
21 district? 21 department's called, that means that's one less fire
22 MR MABRY: Yes, na'am The provision there, 22 truck that can go to somebody's house fire. You know
23 4.2.29Bis not tied to any specific zoning district or 23 that's one less anbul ance that can go to sonebody' s
24 formdistrict, soit would be, you know, applied 24 heart attack. You know, and | always |ike to prevent
25 regardiess in any zoning district. 25 things as muich as | can, soif we can kind of deal with
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1 this on an upfront issue, that saves the inportant 1 that we need to get help for the people and | appl aud
2 resources for the unpreventable things, so l'min 2 you for the work you're doing.
3 agreement that we need to try to keep the doors as open 3 QOW SSIONER JARBCE:  Dawi d?
4 as much as we can to providing for nethadone clinics, 4 OOW SSIONER TOMES:  Vél I, | certainly agree
5 but we still need to balance that with the general 5 with the amendment. The need is absol utely here. |
6 public's feelings of safety and security and that 6 happen to sit on the board of a group called the Council
7 they're reasonably confortable with that, so | think the 7 on Prevention Education for Substances, and we get
8 proposed regul ations try very hard to bal ance both 8 involved in counseling and treatments and al | of that
9 sides. 9 sort of thing. And it is an overwhel mng problem and
10 QOMM SSIONER JARBCE: kay.  Emma? 10 it's not one area of the city, you know? There's al ways
11 COW SSONER SMTH | amin favor of the 11 this thing that it"s a west end problem that it's an
12 amendment for several reasons. e is the human cost. 12 east end problem |'mtelling you, just as it's a south
13 ¢ do need to keep people alive. It's not just them 13 end problem it's every part of this city that has these
14 It's their fanlies and | think this anendment will just 14 problens, and the problemof heroin, in particular, is
15 help the whole situation for the fanmly and the 15 just killing people, and ny friend, Mark Bolton, who
16 community, so | amin favor of it. 16 runs the jail tells me all the time about the need for
17 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Qi ff? 17 just detox beds, you know to get themto the stage
18 OOW SSIONER TURNER O course, |'min favor 18 where they get to nethadone and other treatnents, and
19 also. | do have sone concerns about al | buildings and 19 the jail is, unfortunately, because of the |ack of beds
20 structures shall be at |east 30 feet fromany other 20 for detox in the community, becomng the detox center,
21 property line. |'ve got some real concerns and the 21 and they don't have the facilities, the treatnents --
22 young lady has given us sone eye-openers, so that's one 22 they have linited beds to even get peopl e stacked up
23 concern that | have and hopeful Iy, others can see that 23 there, so they have to turn themaway. And the police
24 as being sonething that we probably need to change. 24 bring themdown there. Wiat are they going to do? They
25 COW SSI ONER JARBCE: Jeff? 25 send themto the hospital, in some cases. But, you
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1 OOW SSICNER BROME No way |'d want this in 1 know it is an overwhelnmng problem so | think we
2 ny back yard, and I'd certainly be opposed if it was 2 absolutely have to do this. | certainly trust that the
3 proposed, but yeah. | think it's a use that the 3 Board of Zoning Adjustnent will weigh the facts and
4 community needs, but we'll leave it at the Board of 4 nmtigation factors in looking at sites, and | hope we
5 Zoning to determne where it's nmost appropriate or what 5 get nore and nore of these and that way, the centers
6 nitigation needs to happen for each particul ar use based 6 don't have to be as large naybe.
7 onsite specific requirenents, so |'mokay with the 7 QOW SSIONER JARBCE:  Lul a?
8 proposed changes. 8 OOW SSIONER HOMRD: - Wl 1, 1" min favor of
9 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Mari | yn? 9 the Text Arendment, and |'mparticularly pleased with --
10 OOW SSIONER LEWS: Vel I, the testinony today 10 well, | guess | should say | applaud the 4.2.29
11 has helped to answer ny questions about it, so I'min 11 Hospitals and Medical dinics area. It's because these
12 favor of it and I'mconfident that the conditional use 12 clinics can be allowed in any district upon the granting
13 permt procedures will ensure that it's put in the 13 up a conditional use pernit and not in certain zoning
14 proper locations and that the concerns of the public are 14 districts, with the listed requirenents, and also | can
15  weighed against the needs for these type facilities. 15 live with the buildings and structures being at |east 30
16 OOW SSI ONER JARBCE: Bob? 16 feet fromthe property line since they can request a
17 OOMWM SSI ONER PETERSCN I'mfully in favor of 17 waiver to not be against that property. | amhappy that
18 it. W don't have to go very far to see the effects of 18 they can request a wai ver.
19 the drug addiction in our comunities, in our churches, 19 OOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.  |''mvery much for
20 and | seeit inour famlies, and | see in ny famly, 20 the anendment. | want to thank the three speakers for
21 and | see it inour church. It's there. It's ranpant. 21 comngintoday. It was very illumnating. You-all
22 \% need to be able to treat people near to where they're 22 gave us alot of information that |'mnot sure very nany
23 residing, near to where they're working. |f we have 23 of us knew about, especially the doctor. | do want to
24 this one location in the commnity, it's totally 24 say that the Metro Gouncil nenbers who had set up this
25 inadequate, so I'mvery much in favor of this. | think 25 ordinance are just responding to their constituents, but
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1 they also have to remenber that their constituents are 1 CLERK  Commi ssi oner Jar boe?
2 also these people that are on the heroin, but they are 2 OOW SSI ONER JARBCE: Yes.
3 tryingto-- youillumnated that for me because those 3 CLERK  Thank you.
4 people that are trying to go to those clinics are the 4 OOW SS ONER JARBCE: Thank you.  Good | uck.
5 ones that are trying to get better. They're trying to 5 Any other information? Enily, you have anything for us?
6 get on nethadone so they can break this habit and there 6 EMLY: Yes. Thereis atraining coming up by
7 isdefinitely, like David said, addicts all throughout 7 KPDA It's the end of Qctober. | amgoing to send it
8 our community, so these clinics need to be everywhere, 8 out toyou It'sall day training from8:30 to 2:30.
9 and ve should not be discrinmnating against any of these 9 But I'lIl send that information to you. The norning
10 operators that want to open these clinics. They shoul d 10 session's especially good, so | hope sone of you who
11 be the sane as any other nmedical clinic, so thank you 11 need the training hours will be able to attend.
12 very much for coning. V& need a notion to approve if 12 QOW SSIONER JARBCE: Ckay.
13 that's the way someone woul d |ike to nake the notion. 13 EMLY: Thank you.
14 It's a reconmendation to Metro Gouncil for approval, and 14 QCOW SSIONER JARBCE: Thank you.
15 obviously, there's plenty of testinony and material that 15 OCOW SSIONER What was the date on that? 1'm
16 we can use as reason for that. 16 sorry. Wat was the date on that?
17 OOW SSI ONER PETERSON M. Chair, in 17 (END CF RECCRDI NG
18  16AVENDLO00, | nove that we reconmend approval to the 18
19  Louisville Metro Gouncil and | make that notion based on 19
20 the testinony today, the staff report, the hearings that 20
21 we've heard, and | nove for a reconmendation of approval 21
22 to Louisville Mtro. 22
23 COW SSIONER HOMRD: 1" Il second that, M. 23
24 (hairman, with the potential findings for Text Arendment 24
25 to be added -- 25
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1 COMM SSI ONER PETERSON  Thank you. 1 CERTI FI CATE OF REPCRTER
2 OOWM SSI O\ER HOMRD.  -- to the motion. 2 COMVONVEALTH OF KENTUCKY AT LARGE
3 COW SSI ONER PETERSON  Thank you. 3
4 COW SSI ONER HOMRD:  Yeah.  Thank you, Lula. 4 | do hereby certify that the said matter was reduced to
5 And you accept that, Bob? 5 type witten formunder ny direction, and constitutes a
6 OOW SSI ONER PETERSON Yes. 6 true record of the recording as taken, all to the best
7 COW SSIONER JARBCE Ckay. Al right. W 7 of ny skill and ability. | certify that | amnot a
8 have a properly made motion and a second. Any further 8 relative or enployee of either counsel, and that | amin
9 discussion on the notion? Hearing none, roll call vote. 9 no way interested financially, directly or indirectly,
10 CLERK  Cormi ssi oner Lewi s? 10 in this action.
1 OOW SSI ONER LEWS:  Yes. 1
12 CQLERC  Conmi ssi oner  Brown? 12
13 COW SSI O\ER BROMR  Yes. 13
14 QLERKC  Commi ssi oner  Hovar d? 14
15 OOW SSI ONER HOMRD:  Yes. 15
16 CQLERC  Conmissi oner Snith? 16
17 COW SIS ONER SMTH  Ves. 17
18 QLERK  Commi ssioner Carl son? 18
19 OO SSI ONER CARLSON s, 19 7 o .
20 CLERK  Cormi ssi oner Tur ner ? 20 wa?f‘f Sl
21 COW SSI ONER TURNER s, 21
22 CQLERK  Commi ssi oner Tones? 22 COURTNEY BUSI CK,
23 COW SSI O\ER TOMES,  Ves. 23 COURT REPCRTER / NOTARY
24 CLERC Conmissi oner Pet erson? 24 COWM SSI ON EXPI RES ON: 10/ 18/ 2017
25 COW SSI O\ER PETERSON Ve, 25  SUBM TTED ON: 10/ 18/ 2016

Kentuckiana Reporters 502.589.2273 Phone
. . 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We§t Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KENTUCKI A N A www.kentuckianareporters.com

—COURT REPORTERS——




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

74
accomplish administers
$ 3 8 22:25 55:1
achieve 64:15, Administratio
$500,000 3 2311 8:00 27:23 18 n 5721
61:15 . . . . '
329i4ééi76‘:5'20 8:30 72:8 acoustic 13:15|  Administrative
: : : . 24:8,11,17
1 69:15 9 acoustics 8:10 30-22 39:10
30-foot 20:10 act 2:922:13 :
1.2.2 19:17 9 713 10:17 2617 61:12 adopt 25:24
30:10 300 43:10 ' ' , adopted 21:12
10 823 5211 49:12,14 54:15 16:22 action 6:7 636 '
o 30s 62:9 9-36-96 6:5,11 active 56:19 .
: . ' adoption 63:7
100 14:10 27:2 9-58-89 6:5 | 23
28:18 30:15 35 53:20 ' actual 23:9 adult 9:22
12-step 392 36 657 9-58-89/15424 24:13,25 vance 2.
_ ' 6:11 ADA 22:1931:7| advance 2:17
: , 36:12 48:16 :
, 90 44:14 .
13 45:19 dded 70:2 advertised
900 54:12,16 added 70:25 25,12
1448 20:14 4 ' addict 58:15 N
15th 20:14 9:00 54:23 ' affect 33:21
4 22:2423:11 addicted 22:14 65:11
15ZONE1036 24:12,18 31:15 A 26:10 28:4,11, .
7:12,13 16:21 4229 2046 12 43:15 48:2 affects 65:10
16AMEND100 23:10 30:12 am. 27:2023 50:6 55:18 affirm 4:18
0 18:1,11 70:18 69:10 addiction 19:7 afford 60:25
AA 4025 28:21 44:4,23
19 4:21 4.2.29B 63:23 . e Affordable
absolutely 46:2567:19 .
40 44:2151:4 61:12
el 9L 60:4 68:5 69:2 addicts 70:7
2 52:554:16 bsti afternoon 2:1
a4§F1'gence' addition 28:10 18:6 37:8 42:20
2 22:24 2412, 5 ' additional age 62:8
71:5 agency 61:16
20 3:216:6,13 S5 44:8 address 2:11 e
47:2 5:00 576 64-11 accgss 2_4:21 3:10 202 24-3, agenda-2:5,£.a,
31:17 32:15 13 25:25 2895 12,22 3:17 4:20
200 51:356:3.4 46:12,22 47:21 . 6:47:12 18:1
o e 29:3 37:12 395 o :
2002 37:18 6 24 60:10 42:10 45:12 agree 15:12,25
2016 2:2 4:21 6 2:2 accessibility 51:20 52:15 33:268:4
. . : . 65:13
6:13 7:14 8:19,24 agreement
2020 25:10 600 43:5 accessible addressed 66:3
. . : 39:6,9,13,25
27:23 40:7 accommodate _ 49:9
24 56:22,25 54:22 57:5 11:15 12:12 addressing
24:6,15 29:5 -
25 3:2344:2 7 39:15 adequate alcohol 21:23
. 2415 28:14,16,17,21
250 7:24 9:8, accommodati ' 44:19 48:8 51:4
11,24 10:2,7 700 43:5 ng 12:3 adjacent 24:14 52:5 53:2
2:30 72:8 7:00 27:2340:6|  accommodati adjustment alcoholism
on 29:6 32:533:14 69:3 28:19
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Maln St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KENTUCKI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

75
alive 43:9,14, anticipate 69:11 Baker 27:16 56:8
25521623 | 1314 areas 20021 | ZBI | b0y g
' anymore 29:10 31:2 33:2 40j4 ' ' 60:5
all- . 46:18 arterial 24:20 _ blue 22:21
encompassin AODE 487 balance 66:5,8
g 287 53:4 ' assembly 31:2 ban 37:21 board 29:21
' ' 32:4 33:13
alloyved 21119 Appeals 37:23, azjzssment banished 39:8,11,17,19
gg;ig 36:7 24 ' 45:23 41:24 42:3
' . applaud 68:1 assisted 62:21 Bardstown j;lzggfit_)g%e’
a'ztgrlnla“ve 69:10 assume 29:5, 7:14 o
' ) applicant 2:24 8,14 60:12 based 25:11 Bob 5813
alternatives 3:4,24 18:4 assuming 32:812436,18| op o1 e
21:7,15 N 15:7,9 52:4 67:6 70:19 =0
applicant's bodies 48:4
alécg%ether 3:19 attack 65:24 basically 20:9, '
: L. 15 36:22 Bolton 68:15
i . application attempt 30:17
amazing 46:15 2:25 3:2,3,20, basis 32:6 brain 43:16
61:3 29 attend 72:11 507
_ attornev 37:9 Bates 7:17,18, '
ambiguity applications y St 24 8:6,10,14, brainer 55:23
19:20 X 47:952:18 )
2:13 17,18 9:8 break 41:3
ambulance applied 63:24 attorney's 10:22,25 11.7, 706 '
65:23 ' 21:11 38:7 19,21 12:15,20 :
_ apply 21:25 ditori 13:4 14:2 Brian 18:5,6
amend 18:2 22:13,16 25:22 a‘;.z'zzr;%'fg . bathroom 29:24 32:13
45:5 64:2 aoiee 50:21 33:19 34:19
amendment : : - ' ot 5.
applying 21:6 . Brian's 27:16
18:3,10 24:10 UL authority bedrooms
25:4.8,19 29:25 appointment 25:23 48:9 61:25 bring 8:15,16
34:5 42:23 50:21 51:14,17 . S . 13:10,12 42:14
4510 497 53:16 55:10.11 a\ig.lllzbllltys bggs 68:17,19, 6824
64:24 66:12,14 : ' P
' appointments o bringing 13:10
68:5 69:9,20 23?'16 average 58:17 beginning 19,2 9
70:24 ' 62:7 18:12 23:10 :
appreciative . broadly 22:2
amendments 2?-8 begins 23:12 y
18:15 24:13,23 ' B Behavioral Brown 4:25
25:14 39:14 approach 3:11 ) 5:13,14 6:21,22
43:23 17:6,7 67:1
amenities approval 2:8 bi;.klglzll:llsglz benefit 42:8 7111213
15:7,11 4:21 23:21 1o, 4, : Bt
Ameri _ 25:16 70:14,18, 18:11 37:16 big 12:11 building 9:1
merica 39:22 21 41:19 42:14 41:13,15,20 20:19 31:1,11
: 47:20 61:3 62:2 . .
American approve 5:6 . : bigger 12:15 39:15,16 52:11
44.23 65-19 67.2 b 'Id'
: 70:12 - . uildings
Americans background binding 6:5,12 3110 38:14
22:12 26:7 aggp,;OVEd 17 30:4 bit 9:112:2,15 41:3 66:19
amount 16:8 area 2:19 10:24 37:16 59:14 bullet 2318
19:2 32:9 . . bad 65:8,18 utlet s,
11:6,9 24:5 black 52:23 24:2,11,18
amounts 25:22 30:20 bailiwick ' 28:24,25 31:15
58:22,23 32:4 34:23 38:22 blank 61:22 32:14 39:13
41:13 52:10 ’ '
angle 14:13 53:10 68:10 blocks 32:2
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentucklar}a Repor}ers 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

76
bulleted 22:24 case 2:14,22 chance 37:10 class 31:9 22:2,3,4,8,9,10
25:2 3:7,16 4:1,3,8, change 18119 classification 23:3,19 24:5,19
burden 46:11 petepsed 19:323129:20|  24:21 PPy
55:20 17:2518:1,4,11 ggfi';g’éégjs classified 14 31:18 33:22,
burdensome 20:18 21:14 " : 19:24 26:6 48:6 24 34:3,14
34:13 32:550:22 changed 37:20 ) 35:24 36:7
bus 406 51:18 64:23,25 48:16 61:12 clean 41:14,20 37:21,25 38:4,
. _ cases 2:104:4 changing cleans 12:4 8'9'10.'17 39:7'
business 2:8, 22 40:2 43:1,8,
1541 A6 6:4,9,12 10:20 33:20 clear 20:1 13 4410 45:6.7
-~ 70 38:15 68:25 22:23 23:17 o1 EEon
57:6 65:2 cheaper 61:1 o1 6 51:21 55:25
bUVInG 4618 category 29:3 62:16 Il 56:22,25 57:13
uying 46:18, a1 heck 60. Clerk 5:11,13, 60:16 62:19
caution 22:17 chemistry 256:2,19,21, 70:4,8,10
C CDC 44:5 50:7 232572468,  close 321572
Chief 11:10 10 17:4,6,8,10, 61:22
cafeteria 7:20 ceiling 14:1,3 15:10 335 12,14,16,18,20, | ' Y o110
. : . : close :
9:9,10,12,13 cell 4:13 50:15 53:7 65:2 ié E';g’géj' y
call 510618 ) . 1EEIEEES closures 2:11
: : center 13:11 child-sized 72:1,3
17:365:19 71:9 15:22 16:7,10, 9:16 clients 24:6.15 code 3:1118:2,
called 37:17 11,13 35:18 hild i 52:1 54:12 1’5 9,11,15,20,23
. . C I ren 9-19 . . ) 19.8 10 12 17
65:21 68:6 4322,23 51.2, 56:1 62:8 e ! ! !

_ 18 54:11 61:18 chronic 43:11, 2320:2,4 2113,
calling 46:24 68:20 16 Cliff 15:14 4,18 29:12 31:1
) ) 35:2,9 49:9,10 52:12

calls 47:265:5 centers 16:5 church 67:21 66-17
cant 13 oo e churches Clifford 4:25 ng-ezgtor
capable 40:16 Central 15:22 67:19 o
. 16:6,7,13 cigarettes clinic 19:14,15, combat 43:2
capacity 51:1 s 16,19,23,24
. 1EE comfortable
capture 22:20 Ci;fg,'f;ﬁ,zo, ‘_11'4_ _ 20:11,13,14 14:21 15:1 66:7
24 Cincinnati 21:1,14 23:1,2
care 22:441:24 57:20,21,22 24:1,4 26:15 comment
46:12,23 61:11, certificates N 28:3,9 30:1,3,7, 31:14
) 24 3'4_2'0 35.1'7 comments
careful 22:11 tified 44:19 ) : 3:23
certitied 44:19, itati : 37:18,20 38:1
32:13333,12 23,24 cltation 24:9 39:1140:3,7.18| Commission
Carlson 4:23 cetera 38:14 citations 6:6 41:7,9,10,25 2:4,7,17,19 3:1
5:19,20 7:2,3 hair o 39:9 42:1 44:14 4:6,7,19 6:13
11:11 15:20 chair 9:12 cities 25:22 50:23 51:1 12:12 18:6
17:12,13 33:5, 70:17 - 52:4,18,21,24 25:13 36:20,23
6,17 50:15,16 Chairman 55 citizens 14:20 53:4,8 57:21 Commission's
51:13,16,22,24 6:10 16:20 city 37:2243:6 28:16 61:14 325
52:7 54:7 70:24 455 4822 63:16,19 64:2 :
56:21,25 57:9 . . 70:11 Commissioner
60:13 68:10,13
62:25 63:10,15,| CHAIRPERSO o linici , 5:2,3,5,7,8,11,
18 64:1.5 65:3, N 2:1 clarification clinicians 45:2 12.13.14,15,16,
471:18,19 chairs 7:24 30:18 clinics 18:3,10, 17,18,19,20,21,
Carlson's 53:7 9:5,6,20,22 clarify 19:25 16 19:5,6,20 22,23,24,25
10:2 11:181211 20:17 20:7 21:6,9,10, 6:1,3,10,14,15,
carpet 47:16 231519 17,19,21,22,24 16,19,20,21,22,
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Maln St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUCKI ANA www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

77
23,24,257:1,2, Commissioner 4:2 conversation create 45:1
3,4,5,6,7,8,9,11 2282 13 . 20:24 27:1 .

' S 4.22 8:213:23 condition Credentialing
9:3,8,16,20,23 14:9 15:25 26:2 43:16 48:21 Copies 2:18 44:20
10:5,7,11,15, 33:18 49:8,9 ' ' P ' '

19,20,25 11:3, 64:22 65:1 conditional copy 48 Creek 7:17,21,
10,11,17,24 common 471 20:5,12 24:1 Cornerstone 24 8:8,11,14,21
12:6,7,18,21,24 o : 29:15,19,21 510 10:12,21 11:4
13:14,18,20 Commonwealt 31:24 32:3 33:9 ’ 12:16,20,22
14:7,9,15,18, h 23:13 34:10 67:12 correct 11:1 13:12,15,22
24,25 15:4,5, . . 69:13 33:22 34:19 14:19,21,23,25
12,14,15,16,17, ommunities . . .
19,20,21,23,24 21:12 45:23 conference S0 S 12'1173'2661106-112’
16:12,14,15,16, 67:19 189 cost 66:12 23
20,24,2517:1, community confidence Council 18:13, Creek's 133
4,5,6,7,8,9,10, 31:20 46:13.16 27:2 18 19:5,25 20:3 '
11,12,13,14,15, 4715 49:3 65:8 confident 25:14 36:9,23 criteria 23:25
;6,;;,28,22,20, 66:16 67:4,24 67:12 68:6 69:24 24:16 30:20

1,23,25 262, 68:20 70:8 ' 70:14,19 -
34501422, confusion ) Cruisers 56:9
2427:8,15 company 50:22 counseing CSAD 48:9
28:1,2 29:23,24 37:19 28:20 44:15,19 '
305719313, | comparison consent 2:9 51:954:655:6, |  curious 34:13,
4,532:10,12 7:23 consequences 859:1,7 68:8 18
33:4,6,17,18 ) 34:2 counselor current 29:18
34:1,12,17,19 compassionat considerabl 27:130:24 43:2
35:1,38,10,13, | € 48:22 T y 4421514525 o
22,24 36:2,3,5, competition : 54:15 _

6,14,18 37:2,5 47:22 consideration 11:22
40:23 42:12,15, ' 28 38:12 counselors
16,18 45:9 complain _ 20:25 30:25 D
49:6,11,16,18, 56:20 considered 40:15,19 44:17
21,25 50:11,14, . 2:7,25 3:9 52:16 i
1516 51:13 16, complaints 26:12 28:14 counteract daily 53:24
) 32:24 . . 58:12
9224527 25 32:15,19 44:3 6516
53:6,13,18 54:7| complete 50:2,561:12 T dangerous
ggfg ig:i;,zs 52:22 constituents counties 44:5 46:17
58:3,4 i3 1425 completely 69:25 70:1 County 21:11 date 72:15,16
59:8,10,11,23 30:2 consumed >722 621 David 4:23
60:2,12,18,22 compliance 41:18 couple 28:2 14:24 31:4
g;;;;i:elsg,lzss, 34:24 context 34:21 43:4 57:16 37:7,959:11
1820 641 5.6 comply 34:11 continue 6:12 Courier 46:13 64:6 68:3 70:7
’ b . ' 47:25 Davidson
7,17,21,22 65:4 Comprehensiv 34:8 377 8.9 42:17
66:10.11.17.18,| e 25:8,10 continued 66 | O 3723 41557
, : 54:11 55:7
25 67:1,9,10, cover 286
16,17 68:3.4 concentrated contribute : 56:24 57:3,11,
69:7,8,19 46:8 61:4 covers 22:21 14
70:17,23 711, concern 56:3 contributing Covington day 47:2,25
iffée‘l’z'ig'ié’ 66:23 62:21 37:9,17,19,20 54:17 55:12
=22 29,79, . 40:24 41:11,25 56:2257:1,2,4,
17,18,19,20,21, concerns 20:2 control 31:12 47-9 5219 7 58:6 60:6
22,23,24,25 32:12 39:6,25 oo 64:15,16,20
e _ 28:4,5,12,13,14 14 56:8 57:4,10 2.8
conclusion days 44:14

502.589.2273 Phone
502.584.0119 Fax
schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
www.kentuckianareporters.com

Kentuckiana Reporters
730 West Main St. Suite 101
Louisville, KY 40202

KENTUCKIANA

—COURT REPORTERS——



PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

78
58:7,8,10 desire 38:2 disabled 26:7 dose 26:16 elaborate
DEA 488 desk 20:22 discretion ézg ‘7"05:2_1'1:17 35:20
DEA'S 50:4 desks 18:12 82:14 60:1 64:11,15, element 6:5,12
T 1
deal 22:17 desperately d|750c.:9r|m|nat|ng 6 el7e.rln7e8r?;alr(3)/15
44:25 65:25 60:20 ' dosing 44:17 1'7 19 924 ’
. . . discrimination 58:12 T
dealing 46:22 deteriorate , ) 13:11
, 37:361:18
deaths 43:11 43:25 . downtown Elementary's
' : discuss 47:12 11:6 15:23,24 .
decision 18:19| determine . 719
) 30:19 32:8 67:5 discussed draft 18:15
- . . elephant 46:20
decisions . 25:15 22:25
2114 determined eligible 23:21
' 50:24 discussing drafters 18:22 28 e
defer 15:25 detox 68:17,20 48:12 drink 26:18 o
deferred 2:10 . discussion o eliminating
' detriment 42:9 510 6:18 17-2 driving 29:1 60:11
i : : ’ ’ 46:4
define 31:22 development 71:9 6 else's 62:4
defined 19:16 18:2,9,11,15, . . drug 19:6,15,
30:10 20,2319:8,11, d'lsﬁcf;SS'O”S 1923 21:1422, S8 9ENCY
definition 17 20:4 21:3,4, ' 24 22:5,8 23:3 ’
19:16.19 232 18 29:12 disease 38:6, 26:11 28:10 Emily 72:5,6,
o : . . : 44:15,19 48:8
28:3,9 31:18 diabetic 47:12 20 58:19 0. ] 13
34:20 disorders 20:4,751:4 Emma 4:24
’ i : 52:553:2 58:12 ’
o dialogue 45:22 45:19 47:1 48:3 SO 15:16 26:4
definitions dialvsis 38:9 59:3 61:23 66-10
231 y ' dispensed 65:6,16 67:19 :
. . i : 20:21
deliberations die 55:18,19 drug-related eg"nnggyed
3:25 died 49:13,14 distaste 39:21 21:22 :
demand 45:3 difference district 29:20 drugs 21:24 employee 37
47:24 49:19,22 50:1 35:25 36:8 22:14 43:17 enables 43:25
: . 63:21,23,24,25 61:25 62:14 :
denial 25:16 differently 69'12’ " a4l
deny 33:12 38:1 ' due 36:25 encapsulated
: - districts 69:14 :
department difficult 19:18 69 25:2
P 58:20 docketed 2:5 E encourage
42:22,25 49:12 48:13.19
58:1 60:15 direct 8:19 doctor 53:19 i _ "
department's directing >4:2 58:15 eg;.llegr;;il.f end 62:15
65:21 18:14 36:23 60:19 69:23 N ng%ll’%z’le’
N doctor's 55:10|  €ast 10:25 b
Departments direction 13:10 16:6,7, ended 22:6
51:21 18:21 19:21,25 doctors 38:23 10,11 68:12 39:19 '
. 36:11 ’
depend 51:1 _ do.cuments easy 158 enforcement
director 19:9 4:5 ;
depends 4221 4429 echo 61:8 53:21
52:15,20 53:21 4515 53:17 dg((;r2041:19 educated enlarged
depressed 54:14 ' 20:25 34:23
4rla Disabilities doqrs 9:25 Education ensure 67:13
description 22:13 26:7 66:3 68:7 .
' ' ) : entail 24:24
2:15 . . dosage 27:7,
disability 21 effect 3:16 enter 9:111°5
Design 18:7,14 26:12 ) '
effects 67:18
Kentuckiana Reporters 5(5)325 2242(2)1? 9P2;))]:e
730 West Main St. Suite 101 hedule@l ’ k
Louisville. KY 40202 sche ue@(entufs 1anareporters.com
’ KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

79
entering 8:23 extent 50:24 feeling 59:2 follow- 26:16 give 43:4 45:12
Entity 48:8 exterior 20:16 feelings 66:6 form 3:14 46:11 52:22
53:2 eye-openers feet 32:247:4 ggfﬁ ggf;}l giving 49:2
entry 20:16,17 66:22 49:152:12 63:1 ' ' good 2:118:6
. . 2 1 form 114 20:24 31:7 37:
epidemic 43:3 EZ1 36:8 66:20 69:16 orms 3 4(1),1022.153208
45:8 Fern 7:17,21, forward 45:11 ) oS
0 8:8.11 14.20 46:10 47:21,23
equation 55:24 F 10.1'2 ’21 ’11_’4 forwarded 48:24 72:4,10
established 12:15,20,21 25:15 government
21:7 25:21 face 8:3 13:3,12,15,22 fought 37:18 3:6 13:11 15:22
- facilities 7:18 14:18,21,23,25 _ 16:5,7,10,11,13
everybody's 20:7 231215 15:1,3,6,10,12, fourth 24:11 35:10 43:1 48:6
59:19 f£9.04,19, 37:23
24 27:9 30:14 1517,20 16:1,
. governments
everyone's 45:16 46:4,6 23 framework 21:13 44:11
. . . ' ranting 69:12
everything's 48:21,23 607, ; . frankly 61:17 g 9
. fight 37:18
60:5 17,21,2461:6 ' gray 32:4
67:15 68:21 ; : free 59:3
. figure 19:10
evidence tacility 7:19 frequency great 22:17
: aciiity 7. files 4:6
25'_12 10:13,17 21:2 _ 38:13 grocery 41:12
ezg'gi 45:21, 247 32:17,22 fill 3:13 61:22 friend 68:15 group 21:21,25
' i‘l‘;gg jié‘l‘ final 18:19 front 825 48:13 68:6
: : : 24:18 ) .
excluded 33:2 46:7,8 47:1,12, . 63:13 growing 43:18
exercise 32:13 17,21 48:4,5,7 finally 3:4 full 12:12 431 guess 16:17
exist 22:10 52:2060:9 find 38:441:21 29:233:10
64:20 fully 67:17
41:6 ' N ' 35:5,6,20 52:7
tact 55: findings 25:4 function 285 69-10
existence 34:3 act 55:13 70:24 uncti e '
60:23 61:5 13 gym 86,11
existing 8:17 fine 50:17 I o
1315 21:3 factors 51:10 o functioning 14:4
63:57.9 52:362:10 69:4 finished 50:20 44:1
expand 60:15, facts 69:3 flgt; 2502.21122625.5, funded 42:25
16 61:19,20 fair 33:16 T funding 60:14, Hab
. firsthand 24 61:5,11 aberman
expansion fall 19:1522:9 65:10 18:5
34:9 28:22 34:20 ' future 18:22 habi .
: y fit 10:10 25:20 abit 70:6
expensive familiar 49:22 half-lif .
62:15 . fits 33:23 alt-lite 64:14
families 55:22 G Hamil
experience 66:14 67:20 fixed 15:9 "’“T“m“
28:25 317 family 55:19 56:23 Gambl 57:22
40:2,24 45:18 : amble 40:6 ,
7 66:15 67:20 flat 61:17 qame 3316 hand 48:23
explain 4010 |  faster 54:18 floor 12:13,17, ' handicap 8:20
b o 25 gave 69:22 handled 18:10
21 favor 3:20 | 7:99 :
. i . general 7: )
exposed 56:7 63:12,13,28 folding 9:12 plboll handout 4:9
| 6 P 5 folks 38:22 Hang 51:15
expressly 69:8 39:20 54:16 generally 8:15
19:19 federal 44:11 10:3 12:4 60:6 happen 4:11
] S follow 22:12 67:6 68:6
extensive 12 48:10 61:16 56:21 58:4 geneses 35:16 R
20:24 ' ’
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.s ! Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com

—COURT REPORTERS——



PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

80
happening 65:6,7 68:14 Hurstbourne 58:24 13:533:8 36:12
46:14 70:2 25:23 . 37:13 43:10
indoor 24:5 4811
happy 26:1 HERSEL 61:15 29:4 '
46:1 69:17 | . item 4:2
6:169 hey 32:20 indoors 29:9 te 0
harassed 42:3 high 7:17,21 dea 528 industrial items 2:9
harassing 8:8,11,21 ) 41:13
42:4 10:12,2111:5,7|  iliness 43:11 . J
. i i ) industry 27:13
. 12:25 14:19 illuminated
hard 52:14 : : . ; -
66:8 16:23 38:16 70:3 information jail 68:16,19
‘ 46:18 54:2 uminati 25:11 69:22 Jarboe 2153
head 54:14 . liuminating 72:5,9 arboe 2:15:3,
- eaded history 30:16 69:21 o . 8,25 6:1,3,14,
eaded 52:8 , _ _ informed 4:12 :
_ hold 18:17 imagine 30:24 o ;,62; 2’09,;51% 1
heading 30:11 . . . initial 18:21 : St bt
hook 13:15 immediately 21-8 15,19 11:10
health 42:22, hope 53:7 4:237:20 o 12:6 13:14,18
25 43:23 49:12 64:11 69.'4 . inside 31:11 14:7,15,24
51:2158:1 1210 Impact 24:14 39:14 40:20 15:4,14.,16.19,
60:15 . ' impacts 18:25 inspection 4:7 21,24 16:14,16,
healthy 55:23 | nospital 241 | . 2417:1,20 21,
' 63:19 68:25 ”Tz‘ggr;zn;li-m insulin 47:12 23,25 26:2,4
hear 13: . 9, : . . . .
33_1435’8 hospitals 20:6 43:13 448 66:1 insurance 2531022'32-2 ié'd'
‘ 23:14 24:19 _ ol 33:8 24l 1217
heard 3:2,3,4 30:13,14 31:19 Impossible . . hls
62:13 70:21 69'11 61:10 Intensive 41:1 35:1,8,22 36:5
. i : interested 4:8 3715 42:12,16,
hearing 2:4,10,| hour 56:22,25 in-house 39:1 : 18 49:6 50:15
13,18,23 4:5,9, 57:4 inadequate interesting 52:25 53:6,13,
11,22 5:10 6:4, hours 27:19.20 67:25 45:25 47:6 18 55:9 58:3,13
137:13 16:21 o o 59:11,23 60:2,
B 33:7 41:355:13 Inaudible 2:13 interior 20:19 ,
17:2 18:18 6115917 : 12,18,22 61:7
25:13 29:15 o1 15:1325:18 interpretation 62:6,23 63:4
37:1 49:8 65:1 ' 31:22 35:3 19:10,13,17,22 64:6,22 66:10,
71:9 house 65:22 52:12 nterpretation 17,25 67:9,16
hearings housekeeping incident 28:6 s 2322 68:369:7,19
20:20 034 _ : 71:7 72:1,2,4,
' ' 'nz(glzdsz_;l'ﬂ intersection 12,14
heart 65:24 H;).VZVZ‘T 1§'f§ . Il g ' 115 Jeff 4:25 66:25
: 240010, includes 19:19 : -
hifzz“'z’ll 6:10,23,24 2810 interviews Jefferson 62:1
' 11:17,24 1418 | . 43:6 Joann 4219
helped 67:11 17:8,9 36:3,6, including 2151\ 0ved 26:13 20 o
14,18 37:2 58:4 3:1121:23 27:4 36:12
helpful 23:23 : . 23:13 o ;
63:20 69:8 : 55:22 68:8 job 47:23 48:24
helping 18:8 70:2371:2,4, i . 56:18
45?7 9 14,15 |n2(?;)3rporated Issue 10:18 )
A : 25:25 26:21 jobs 62:20
: uge 42:2 44:4, ; . . .
helps 12:5 g Indiana 42:1,4 31:2136:24 Joe 18:820:13
14:23 S indianapolis 44:25 45:3 46:1
e aa. human 66:12 . 50:6 60:11,24 John 14:7
hepatitis 44:6 18:8 61:9 66:1 29:23 35:23
heroin 43:15 hundreds indirectly 8:
y 8:21 - , .
44:7 49:14,16, 19:11 o issued 23:13 Joseph 18:5
2450:4,7,9 , individual issues 2:16 Journal 46:14
hurdles 49:2 50:23 52:4.21
58:15 62:15 : o 8:20,25 11:11 48:1
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Maln St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

81
Julia 7:15 lane 24:3 likelihood 21:5 looked 36:12 23:22 34:4
16:17 language limit 51:553:21 59:1261:20 j§i44£914316
jump 49:2 32:2563:9 limitations Lori 45:13 56:11,17 60:5
large 10:124:6 20:8 loss 38:9 64:11 70:13,19
K : L
69:6 limited 68:22 lot 23:329:2,25 makes 22:22
larger 7:20 L ] 39:16 40:11,21 55:1
KAR 24:7 39:9 limiting 52:3 4193 457 17 _
latch 19:22 . ) ) o making 3:12
Kentucky limits 3:16 48:10 52:17 5324
23:13 24:8,10, law 50:25 lines 27-9 23 54:16 56:12
17.30:22 39:9 lawfully 34:14 41:21 632,11 61:24,25 62:1 managed
42'5 44:4.8.11, awtutly 34 Pk 65:15 69:22 48:12
19,25 45:14,16 Lawrenceburg o Louisville 2:3 Manager 7:15
48:8 57:18,19 42:2 liquid 50:12 18:4.7 20:15
. . o Manger 18:4
kid 62:3 laws 28:16 list 22:24 50:4 42:21 43:18
) 53:3 46:6 47:18 many's 57:10
kids 47:362:5 lawyers 38:25 48:5.22 24 h
listed 19:11,12 Ea ) marching 19:1
killing 68:15 leave 26:18 5014 49:5,13,15 58:1 ' 9
Kind 820 14:2 51:8 54:4 67:4 ' 60:10,14 70:19, Marilyn 4:23
Ind s : [ : 22 28:167:9
16:3 19:12,15, left 11:7 20:20 live 69:15
2120:9,18 legal 21:13 lives 43:21,24 lower 20:17,23 Marilyn's 31:6
21:15,19,21,25 51:1161:3 luck 72:4 Mark 68:15
22:22 24:25 legally 26:13 62:12,17,19 Lul
. . L ula 4:23 14:17 :
25:2.26:25 length 40:10 living 10:23 i . ) markers 60:8
- . 36:20 58:3 69:7
31:5,21 33:23 58:17 ) markup 25:1
34:2,9,12 38:1, ' load 52:24 71:4
5,9,19,20,25 lessen 46:11 local 21:13 Mary 11:9
41:22 45:24 . ’ M . .
515 50:19 letter 20:10 locate 32:17.22 material 70:15
65:18,25 lettering 22:22 . . materials
. located 4:9 M1 36:7 50:15,18
kinds 53:8 level 12:14 20:5 24:20 M2 367
62:17 24:6 48:10 61:19 ’ matter 64:16,
. . : 19
KIPDA 72:7 Lewis 4:23 location 7:12, M3 36:7
Kirchdorfer 5:11,12 6:19,20 218:7,9 14:6 Mabry 18:5,6,7 Matthews
42 17:4,5 28:2,23 16:18 31:18 26:8,10,19,23, 25:23 43:23
29:14 67:10 67:24 25 27:12 28:8, maximum 51:2
knew 69:23 71:10,11 locations 9:7 16 29:8,16
. . . e 30:3,6,9,22 Maysville
knowing 31:19 Lexington 11:22 12:13,17 31.95 331025 5716
58:2 14:17 16:12 34:6 16 354 ’
. 57:1567:14 o e :
L license 53:5 12,14 36:1,9, means 65:21
licensed loitering 18:24 16,19 63:5,12, medical 20:7
. 24:3 28:25 29:3 : : : :
lack 68:19 44:18.22 50:4 . ' 17,19,22 64:4 22:323:2 241,
5124 31:12 40:11,13 de 4459 19 28:9,18,19,
lady 49:11 = 41:22 46:3 53:9 mGa'17el7'.1 0.0 2030:3,9,11,
66:22 life- 65:14 59:14,19 ’ ’ e 13,14,16 33:22,
land 24 65:571:8 2334:2.20
and 2:418:2,9, i . : : . . =
lifelong 50:7,0 | long 12338:14) o in 201 35:24 387,23
10,15,20,23 _ 40:16 41:21 . .
19:8,11,16 20:3|  light 11:531:22 50:19 54-20 make 2:24 55 332%314442-221
21:3,4,18 29:12|  |ighting 8:6,7, 61:17 64:14,20 6:7,8 15:3 5315’52,12'16
38:11,21,25 10 , 16:17 18:18,19 DO
longer 15:2 10022 25 54:14 62:21
25:6 51:8 54:5 e 63:16 69:11
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.s ! Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUCKI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com

—COURT REPORTERS——



PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

82
70:11 25:13,21 33:6, 1971:2,8,9 57:12,23 60:13 35:18 37:20
. 22 35:4 42:21 . 39:12 41:11,13,
meq'(t:ag . 69:24 70:14,19,|  Mount 11:8 ”g;‘_‘l);ozgt; 25 18 46:13 47:21
azS'S ed 50:3, 22 mouth 41:18 e 48:20 57:1
o Metro-run 21:1 50:13 normal 53:19 6452,10 66:3
medication move 6:12 63:4 70:10
44:16 m;glr;phone 16:20 37:6 northern open-minded
medication- ' 58:18 70:18,21 57:17,19 45:21
assisted microphones multiple 16:2 note 3:15 opened 9:13
43:19,24 8:13,15 14:22 39:7 41:25
o . ] November ' '
memeg middle 20:23 N 7:1310:17 opening 9:25
44:24 54:2 Middletown 16:22 18:13 47:19
meet 40:15 45:14 46:24 nail 51:25 36:10 opens 57:5
meeting 2:3,6, midnight Narcan 65:16 nuance 30:16 operate 51:20
7 4:14.17 11:15,16,25 ) "
40:25 mind 48:20 A41:24 42:3 48:9 52:353:10 427
: minimum 56:6,17 60:15
meets 50:3 operates
52:10 nation 45:13 numbers 43:5 i
members 2:17 _ 4823 53.9 12 50:24
44:1 62:21 minor 22:4 ' . operatin
69:24 ) 15 58:20 59:5, 0] p g
’ minute 50:13 9,21,25 60:3, 34:8,14 41:20
mention 2917 | minutes 2:6 17,2023 64113, 400 operation
mentioned 3:18,21,23,24 18 ] _ 26:15 33:7 41:9
19:7 30:12 4:215:1,6 national 47:17 |  °bservation 55:15 56:22
55:17 42:10 55:4 58:12 58:6
. nature 27:5 b q ,
met 47:11 mistake 38:15 observe operations
o needed 9:13 22:18 26:15 57:1.4
methadone mitigation 43:2 54:4
18:16 19:5,14, 07:669:4 needing 23:22 observes operators
23 20:21 21:10, o 9 e 70:10
modifications 47:12 26:18
14,17,18,20,23 2516 _ opiate 64:14
22:2,8 26:6,16 needle- obvious 29:24 o
35:17 36:7 money 61:2 i . opinion 10:22,

- sharing 44:7 occur 4-1 54 38:7
37:17,21,25 ; . . )

DO 60:4 opioid 43:3,11
39:2,6,11 40:1, _ night 4:227:13 October 2:2 44:3 507
3,7,14,18417, |  monitored 16:21 64:12 6:6,13 72:7 -

9,10,25 42:1,24 27:3 . fer 3:23 opioids 43:15

: : nimby 62:5 offer 3: _
43.12120 4f1.9, monitoring - y opportunity
14 45:6 49:23 39:16 59:25 Ninth 37:24 offered 7:23 5:139:23
50:2,9 52:6 ' . ) .

54:3 55:20,25 month 43:5,7 nobody's Ol;ficli 561244-7 opposed 3:22

. . 56:12 : : 67:2
57'21122 58:17, months 43:7 47:18
18 59:3,6,16 . non- 2:10 opposition 3:3
61:14 62:11,19 morning 27:21 _ offices 35:11
64:13 66:4 40:6,7 54:23 nonconformin o option 21:21
68:18 70:6 57:572:9 g 34:6,7,22 official 2:23 22:1,6

Metro 2:318:4,| motion 5:6,9 nonprofit on-site 44:17 options 43:2,
7,13,18 19:4,25 6:7,8,17 16:17 35:15 39:20 open 7:19 9:9, 20
20:3,15 21:2 17:2 70:12,13, 42:25 48:5 11 14:3 32:19
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

83
order 60:15 39:16 40:11,21 period 40:15 Pikeville 45:17 preceding
orders 19-1 41:14,23 56:12 41:10 51:8 59:3 place 11:12 65:7
ordinance part 30:17 33:1 permanent 18:25 29:11 prefer 14:18,23

43:151:1,12 13:3,20 48:11 61:23 15:21
18:13,20 33:6 52:4 15.20
36:6,10,15,17, 57:1;) 6'8'13 permit 20:12 places 7:22 preference
21 37:21 38:3 ' ) 24:1 29:15 8:5,18 11:14 15:6
69:25 passed 18:13 31:25 32:3,17, 57:17 61:25 repare 36:15
N 36:10,21 38:3 22 33:9 34:10 brep :
orientation 67:13 69:13 plan 25:8,10 rescription
57:7 past 48:14 49 0% 337 p62'14 P
oriented 9:18 patient 27:7 permits 29:21 planning 2:3,7, resent 2:14
other's 58:2 52:24 60:3 permitted 193:1,25 4:5,7, p3_7 v
’ atients 26:20 31:24 15,17,19 6:13 o
outbreak 44:6 P ) o ] 18:7,14 19:9 presentation
30:23 31:8 person 22:15 2513 36:23 319 39:8
outdoor 24:3 44:18,21 51:3,5 35:19,22 50:19 ’ ' ’ ’
28:25 52:1,3,5,8,11 52:13 54:25 play 30:25 presentations
. 2 59: 2 1 4:1 :
outline 2:15 56:2 59:5 60:25 59 64:10 8:4
. Pavilion 7:14 person's 3:5 pleased 69:9 pressure 54:2
outpatient 605
41:1 pay 61:13 personally plenty 8:18 :
14:18 12:13 41:14 i
overdose peak 27:19 7015 pg(fsumlng
43:11 49:15 55:13 persons 3:1, ' ’
65:15,20 ) 20,22 28:4,11, pocket 61:14 pretty 9:7 20:6
people 822 12 4822 . 38:16 65:17
overdoses 9:2412:2,3 podium 3:12
46:14 65:6,17 1351,8 1-5:2,7 - pergpectlve point 31:15 prevent 65:24
16:4 22:17 26:5 24:4 .
overhead 8.6 ) . 32:14 39:5 Prevention
27:11 29:2
) ) Peterson 4:24 62:20 65:12 68:7
overrun 46:24 37:11 38:25 ) _
39:15,20,22 5:23,24 7:6,7 points 25:2 primary 28:5
oversight 45:1 40:3,14,18,21 17:18,19 58:14, 28:24 39:13 12 56:6
helmi 41:2,5,14 42:3 2559:8,10 55:12
overwhelming 2.5, : 67:17 70:17 : prime 54:22
68:9 69:1 43:4,5,9,14,16, .
. 71:1,3,6,24,25 police 56:9,15 .
46 21 45:7,18 68:23 principle 2:11
owns 46:9 46:11,17,22,23,| phones 4:13 ' : .
24 47:2,12,13, o policing 56:16 print 22:19
: phonetic 61:15 .
P 14 48:18,20 oliticall printed 25:4
49:12,1450:18 |  phrase 19:19 polrtically .
p.m. 16:23 51:14 53:8,11, 23:10,24 28:7, 56:19 prior 3:6 27:21
15,20 54:8,186, 22 poorly 42:2 privacy 26:20
padded 14:19 23 55:15,18,23 . )
56:3.5,11 57:8 physically portable 8:16 private 21:6
Paducah . . 11:18 13:4 35:13,17
. 58:9,11 60:7 ,
45:16 , o _
61:10,13,24 physicians portion 4:4 privately 42:25
parameters 62:2,10,11,18 44:24 .
32:1 64:9 65:10,14 hvsiological possibly 35:19 problem 15:10
66:13 67:22 physiologica ; ) 38:4,7,17 43:14
: : potential 18:24 A
P?;szc‘)ln 49:20 68:1,15,22 28:21 19:3 3517 44:4 46:5 47:4
' 70:2,4 pick 4:814:16 70:24 (13(1):126;8&8:9'
arents 10:4 ) 21:16 47:6 . 144543,
P _ percent 14:10 potentially 69:1
parking 8:18 27:228:18 pictures 12:18 20:1 22:9 .
18:24 24:14 30:15 41:8 _ problematic
32:9 38:12 practice 21:6 31:25
45:14 49:5
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

84

—COURT REPORTERS——

problems 4:14 proposals 2:4 32:2537:11 ready 14:4 regulate 21:9
53:9 62:17 22:18 37:11 61:21 67:13 60:16 65:2 39:3,19 56:15
68:14 propose 23:7 putting 11:18, real 66:21 regulated 42:8
r r 21 . . 44:10 48:7

p2c7).cle0d6u7.i:§ proposed 22:7 realization 048

‘ ' 23:5,18,23 61:23 regulates 56:7
process 33:9 24:9,13,22 Q . . .
34:18 36:25 25:1,4 28:9 realize 47:23 regulating
39:4 59:7 29:20 668 . 48:14 52:21 21:16 22:2
s g qualified 45:2 53:24 61:9 38:11,21 39:15
processing . quasi- 35:15 realtors 61:21 regulation
55:15 proposing ] 21:15 40:20
1:23 35:1 question 14:8 50 2- : :
Proctor 40:6 31:23 3518 19:13 21:8 26:3 riaioééifig 43:12 47:6 63:5
productive protected 28:24 31:6,15 - o regulations
) 31:9,14 34:7,21 36:3 40:24 reason 19:18 ) .

44:1 : : 4293 70:16 18:23 21:12,25
rofit 35:17 protections 50:21 51:11,25 : ' 22:16,25 24:8,
prot =0 26:13 56:2,16 58:5, reasonable 11 25:25 32:23

37:17,20 39:20, 14,21 59:12,13 ) . . -
. . ; . ’ ’ 24:21 31:16,17, 34:25 35:16
21,23 46:7 48:4 provide 3:13 60:19 62:25 ) : ,
22 32:9,15,18 39:10 44:12,13
54:1156:1,4 4:19 24:4 45:24 64:7 o )
. 45:1 48:10 66:8
57:13,15,19 rovided 2:17 L reasons 41:25
60:9 provided <. questioning 59:13 66:12 regulatory
18:21 25:12 3:8 ) ,
: 41:23 48:4

program 38:5 roviders . _ rebuttal 3:5,25
39:24318502| PM0 questions 3:6 es sgig|  related 43
62:11 ' ;iéi 3211528 ; receives s 18:2,10,23 19:6

. providing 45:2 e recently 20:13 21:14 22:7,12,

programs 39:1 664 30:1 33:19 35:2 61:10 19 25:7 30:23
41:242:24 - 37:13 40:22 57:8
43:20 provision 42:9,14 44:9 recognize

Project 7:14 égg 32:20 46:1,2 49:8,9 20:19 f‘i‘?_ijted
18:3 ' 20:1763'21?3 recommend '

. , provisions S16r: 12:9,16 25:13 rely 33:1156:5

projector 8:1 21:3,4 24:10 ' : 70:18
13:20 145 3.4 o quick 27:6 : remain 3:8

25:7 30:23 29:2556:21 recommendati
promote 47:22 50:25 53:3 . remarks 3:21
o quicker 12:5 on 9:318:18

proper 38:24, psychiatrist 19:4 25:15 remember

25 67:14 44:22 45:14 70:14,21 40:23 51:12
_ 4615 R _ 70:1

properly 5:9 _ recommendati
6:17 17:1 41:6 psychiatry raised 44:9 ons 18:17 remembered
42:6,7 71:8 46:23 46:2 55:18

_ ) : record 2:21,23

properties public 2:12 rampant 67:21 3:11,14 16:1 remove 23:23
19:1 24:14 4:4,6,9,11 6:4, ' d 308
Coberty 2010 13 15:8 16:9 random 44:15 RECORDING removed 30

property 2o 18:17 24:21 , 72:17 removing
29:7 32:7 47:5 ) ) range 43:1
491632 12 13 25:12 29:15 records 4:5 23:8,18
66:21 69-16.17 31:17,19 32:7 rationale 63:7 lacing 50:8

£ B0, 35:16,19 37:1 _ red 47:16 reptacing S0:
reach 48:22

proponents 60:24 67:14 reduce 13:7 report 2:16,18,

64:8 . . read 2:13,21 21,22 22:23
| 215 public’s 66:6 5:1 50:16 reference 23:8 23:11 24:3.12

proposal 2: . . oo
324 25:920:1g| PUl #131218 1o oding 5015, |  reg 36:24 19 25:11 70:20
30-3.10 14:1 22:18,20 18 t

- 29:2,24 31:22 regular 2:3 represen
41:11
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUCKI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

85
representative revise 23:2 scared 47:22 send 68:25 53:22 55:24
2:24 314,19 rezoning 4:12 scenario 47:10 72:7.9 63:13
r(zp;rfgented Richard 4:23 58:21 sense 15:3 sgj;yones
' . . Schedule 50:4 separate 6:9 '
representing Rights 34:22 sides 66:9
5714 fipe 44:6 scheduled September '
' P ' 16:22 4:21 significant
request 69:16, river 57:24 scheme 29:18 served 24:16 19:2 23:6
18 : : o .
requestin Robert 4:24 school 7:17,21 service 28:7 signify 63:8
2%,12 9 roll 5:106:18 8:8,12,21 65:5,6 signs 20:8
: _ 17:3 719 10:12,21 11:5, services 18:7, |  similar 8:11,12
require 23:16 lling 47-16 6,7 12:25 13:11 14.45:3.4 0:47 13:25
24:4,141931:9| '01ING 4% 14:19 16:23 > LAk 1040
required 31:18 rol"'rsz 13:24,25 Schulte 42:19, | Serving 247 21:11 25:25
39:17 40:14 ' 20,21 49:14,17, session 2:9 simple 206
. room 2:20 3:15 20,23 50:2,13, 4:1 44:15 65:2 P '
requirement .
23:18 24:9 53:3 4:10 7:20 20:20 2351:15,17,23 session's single 22:15
: ' : 29:4 32:4 41:15 52:2,14 53:23 7210 38:3,16 48:13,
requirements 54:1 54:9 55:5 57:25 : 15
31:1 33:8 44:13 58:8 61:8 62:9 set 8:29:5,21 . .
51:367:769:14| OUgh 355 10:312:9,10 singling 48:17,
: T scope 34:23 : e 18
requires 39:11 roughly 61:15 13,16 23:22
) ‘ screen 8:3 56:13,14 69:24 Sir 52:1457:11
50:25 rows 15:8 14°5 14 20:22
requiring ruin 55:19 2322:20 25:3,7| S€tup 11:19 5'569;71‘;;%13
23:12,24 62:17,18 screens 8:1 setback 20:10 ' ’
. . o site 24:16
research ruined 62:12 13:21 44:16 sets 20:8 2519 325 6
18:14 21: . : e
8 8 Rule 34:7 seat 16:13 setting 7:12 50:18 52:9,11
residential 25:20 29:10 53:17 67:7
20:9 rules 22:12 seated 8:3 3393
' 24:18 30:23 seating 9:13 ' sites 7:17,24
residing 67:23 317 16:8 ' share 32:11 61:20 69:4
resolution run 41:6 42:2,6, seats 91112 sheer 16:4 sitting 13:1,21
36:22 2458:1 14:20 shift 27:22 405 53:20
resources runs 20:15,25 ; 64:19 situation 8:5
. ’ Section 19:17 _ .
66:2 35:5 68:16 20-4 shifts 64:9 65:12,15 66:15
respond 32:11 rush 55:13 secured 20:17 Short 20:6 356 sg;algons
' 20:22 33:7 shots 20:15,19 '
rest 15:25 . 56:10 66:6 Show 24:25 size 30:20
o safety 66:6 : - .
restriction . seek 22:25 41:18 50:22 i’ggg 23:12’17’
29:22 63:3 Saint 25:23 27:19,24 34:11 showing 21:1 ’ '
- 43:22 43:7 : li 24:2
restrictions 29:11 43:22 slides °
63:1 Saturday seeking 22:14 o _ small 53:10
. 58:11 26:6,11 shown 41:8
review 2:20 ic 118 smaller 22:20
34:10 save 61:2 segment 2:11 sic 1L smallest 16:8
reviewed 3:7 saves 66:1 selecting sick 46:19 Smith 4:24
: 22:11 i : ’
2111 side 2221 5:17,18 6:25
. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

86
7:115:17 42:13 start 14:17 strong 15:5 tables 9:15
17:10,11 26:3, specific 22:15 38:18 53:9 structures 12:14
5.9,14,22,24 25:19 39:24 62:14 65:3 66:20 69:15 tailored 58:23
278,15 66:11 63:23 67:7 started 2:2
71:16,17 ' ' ’ stuff 23:14 taking 40:14
smoke 296 sggigltlzgl;y starting 40:5 65:16 44:16
31:10,11,13 21:10 17'20 state 3:10 subject 21:2 talk 27:17
40:12,19 41:4 o 36:24 39:8,17, 62:13
27:20 10 41:24 423 subset 22:1
smoking 292, | o nding 607 44:11,2545:20 | substance talked 10:12
7,9,10,11 31:12 33:7,852:19
39:25 spent 19:2 48:9 50:25 56:6 28:14 45:19
) P ‘ 57:16 64:15,18 46:25 48:2 talking 13:22
smoothly spoke 10:16 16:9 28:8 38:18
41:20 37:10 52:18 state-run substances 54:7,18 55:9
23:15 28:4,6,12,13 50-14.19
Snyder 11:1 sponsor 30:19 68:7 o
statement tapered 595
sobut 14:4 sponsors 2:253:12 sued 37:22 P ’
society 44:2, 18:2136:11 statements sufficient 45:1 target 47:7.10
23 55:20 62:21 : 4:3 i :
square 52:12 suggest 52:13 teégirlg 40:16
sole 38:18 stabilized static 61:16 suggestion '
somebody's 62:19 station 56:9 52:10 tells 68:16
65:22,23 stable 62:12 statistics summaries te;(;pl 581:3017
someone's stack 38:16 47:25 24:13 o
405 32:14

sort 35:1568:9

stacked 68:22
staff 2:14,16,

statute 23:16
36:24

summary 2:14
24:22

terminology
48:1

—COURT REPORTERS——

: : 4:12 30:2 : .
sorts 32:25 18,21122 3.1_8, stay : 30 : Sunday 58:11 terminology's
. 1911:19 12:4 43:950:19 51:8 )
sound 8:13,16, . . , support 2:25 48:16
. 18:14 22:23 64:9
18 13:3,4,6 2311 242 12 3:142:13,22 terms 32:2
15:18 19 2511 31-1 Stlegady 64:15, 45:10 49:7 4319
south 11:1 70:20 surprised 9:24 : ,
20:14 68:12 _ steps 59:1 L testify 38:23
stage 12:15 surprising testimony 3:9
sg;tlheast 13:22 68:17 stigma 44:3 10:1 13 4:2,18 25:12
’ stages 12:7,8, stools 9:14,17 surrounding 27:17 327
space 12:13 10,11 . 18:25 59:23 67:10
39:14 staggering stop 54:18 surroundings 70:15,20
speak 3:515:9 46:15 stops 54:24 326 testing 27:4
27:2,1 2 . : .

o 335 3 stairs 8:24 store 41:13 suspecting text 18:3,9
45:10 497 treet 2:11 10:20 25:4,8,14,18
64:23,25 stand 4:16,18 street < ' o,

4115 16 47:19 20:14 24:20 swear 4:18 34:5 36:25
speaker 3:6,8 — ' 56:9 61:1 62:16 ’ 45:10 49:7
37:6 naar : : 64:24 69:9
Stz%-g 4B streets 2018 1254615 70:24
speaker's 3:14 ' 46:22 16 15:1:8, e '
. : that'll 27:17
speakers 3:10 S;%hfgrsdzsllzo stricken 28:11
27:18 42:18 o ' . theatre 8:7,12

: . 23:9 50:3 strikethrough T
51:19 62:13,24 24:25 thera 61:23
69:20 standing 27:11 ' ol py 6L

: . i : table 3:154:10 NN 27
speaking 4:15 40:21,22 41:5 strip 35:18 oo there'll 27:17
56:12 : 29:4
, 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax
730 We.st Mam St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

—COURT REPORTERS——

87
thing 23:15 45:9 64:7,17,21 trust 69:2 unpreventable 20 55:2
jz)fig Zif‘; - 68:471:22,23 truth 4:20 66:2 walks 50:19
44:9 53:23,25 top 201654131 41 4138:3 ”giizsonable wall 7:19
56:13 68:9,11 total 3:21,22 14:10,14 35:8 : wanted 16:1
things 10:4 totally 67:24 55:2 68:23 upfront 66:1 36:1142:4,5
12:4,5 23:19 ) Turner 4:25 upper 51:5 64:1
275 28:20 tour 26:25 5:21,22 7:4,5 urdent 22:4 wanting 45.24
32:25 33:12,14 town 33:1,2 15:15 17:14,15 9 ' 472 g 4>
38:13 39:10,12 raffic 1022 35:3,10,13 urine 27:4 ‘
42:6,8,10 45:5 raffic 10: 49:11,16,18,21, Washington-
47:751:10 training 72:6,8, 2550:11,14 Vv glen 11:9
55:17 65:19,25 11 57:10,12 62:7 .
66:2 N 66:18 71:20,21 watched 47:9
o tranquilizer _ variances 517
th(;;l;mg 54:1 46:20 turning 11:7 34:11 ways 403
' transportation type 9:1222:15 variation i :
thought 10:7 24:22 31:17,20 28:6 33:14 65:6 52:17 weaning 59:2
34:1 47:4 65:11 67:15 :
_ treat 28:11,19 vary 52:24 week 51:9
threatening 37:25 38:5,8 types 21:24 58:6,7,8,10
65:15 46:25 48:20 22:3,10,16 Vi;?’rs 1113 weekly 44:15
throw 52:9 67:22 23:19 : 54:5
tighter 44:12 456623 typically i~ weighed 67:15
' treating 19:6 36:20,21 58:9 vibrate 4:13 .
time 3:5,16,17 47:13 62:2 59:4 62:11 view 20:18 weight 38:8
11:12 14:4 19:2 63:15 Wellness
25:6 30:12 treatment visit 20:23 4920
40:10,15 41:3, ;?;‘2‘52‘2‘ 3 U 53:19
! . 22, 6, . west 68:11
1(9) 2123152%18' 8,14 23:3 266, visited 20:13
54599 S610 1127:132024 | Uh-huh 26:24 355 when's 47:11
[ 28:17 38:5,19, _ e . ; .
56:10 57:1,2 54, 39:1 412 underline 25:1 visits 50:21 white 52:23
58:17,22 60:3,7 . . ] 51:13 53:11,25 nggle 32:4
61:17 64:16 43:2,4,7,19,25 under“ned ‘ . - .
65:20 68:16 44:14 45:8,24 63:8 vote 5:106:18 | \ijliams 7:15,
46:2,7 47:3 d 173719 16 9:4,10,18,22
; ) . ) underscore . A
times 56:23 48:19 50:3,9,11 Doy voting 4:1 10:2,6,9,14,16,
titled 4:9 54:355:21 ' 2311:2,4,14,20
58:7,16 59:9 understand W 12:1,8,20,23
today 2:5 4:15, 61:2,13 62:22 27:10 46:9 47°5 13:9,17,24
;3 12:;,882231:5 64:14 65:9 14:12 16:19
: ; , waiting 20:20 ;
40:1 41:11 treatments understanding 24:5 299-4 30:20 L2
_ , 28:19,21 68:8, -8 31: >Eoan indow 41:17
70:20 ! Understood 53:10,15,20,25 5425
today's 26,17 treats 28:4 617 55:10 61:5,6 windows
3:17 4:8,17 trigger 34:9 unfolded waiver 64:2 542122
Tomes 4:24 troubled 31:16 47:10 6917’18 W|Sh|ng 3:13
i;'ig 13152.15 truck 65:22 unintended waivers 34:11 woefully 35:6
I ' 34:2 walk 40:8
31:532:12 True 53:12 : won 37:22
3620 4215 unit 51:6 41:14,16 54:19,
Kentuckiana Reporters 5(5)(2)252242(2)39])22: ¢
730 We.st Maln St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com
Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com




PUBLI C HEARI NG, taken on Cctober 06, 2016

88
wonderful 69:21
522 young 49:11
word 28:5 66:22
worded 30:13
i Z
wording 33:21
words 44:24 ZIP 311
wordsmithing zoning 2:10
234 21:11 25:23
work 21:10 29510,19,22
27:22,25 29:25 32:4 33-1'3
37:11 40:5,10 34:21 35:25
44:18 46:10 37:21 39:4
54:24 55:16 6334'20i23’25
58:9,10 61:4 67:569:3,13
64:9,19 68:2
worked 45:15,
17
working 19:3
45:18 54:13
55:21 57:8
58:11 67:23
works 51:6
55:15 56:14

worried 32:16

worry 39:18
62:4

wouldn't'
23:23

written 5:6

wrong 54:13

Y

yard 47:20 62:2
67:2

year 18:13
43:10 49:15
61:15

years 41:12
44:2 45:19
65:5,7

yesterday
10:16

you-all 11:18
18:17 29:24
45:21 47:11

. 502.589.2273 Phone
Kentuckiana Reporters 502.584.0119 Fax

730 West Main St. Suite 101 schedule@kentuckianareporters.com

Louisville, KY 40202 KE N TUC KI AN A www.kentuckianareporters.com

—COURT REPORTERS——




	Transcript
	Cover
	Caption
	Pages 2..5
	Pages 6..9
	Pages 10..13
	Pages 14..17
	Pages 18..21
	Pages 22..25
	Pages 26..29
	Pages 30..33
	Pages 34..37
	Pages 38..41
	Pages 42..45
	Pages 46..49
	Pages 50..53
	Pages 54..57
	Pages 58..61
	Pages 62..65
	Pages 66..69
	Pages 70..73

	Word Index
	Index: $500,000..alcoholism
	$500,000 (1)
	1.2.2 (2)
	10 (2)
	100 (4)
	12-step (2)
	13 (1)
	1448 (1)
	15th (1)
	15ZONE1036 (3)
	16AMEND1000 (3)
	19 (1)
	2 (3)
	20 (4)
	200 (3)
	2002 (1)
	2016 (4)
	2020 (1)
	220 (1)
	24 (3)
	25 (2)
	250 (6)
	2:30 (1)
	3 (1)
	30 (6)
	30-foot (1)
	300 (4)
	30s (1)
	35 (1)
	36 (1)
	380 (1)
	4 (5)
	4.2.29 (6)
	4.2.29B (1)
	40 (4)
	55 (1)
	5:00 (2)
	6 (1)
	600 (1)
	6:00 (5)
	700 (1)
	7:00 (2)
	8:00 (1)
	8:30 (1)
	9 (3)
	9-36-96 (2)
	9-58-89 (1)
	9-58-89/15424 (1)
	90 (1)
	900 (2)
	9:00 (1)
	a.m. (2)
	AA (1)
	absolutely (3)
	abstinence- (1)
	accept (2)
	access (8)
	accessibility (2)
	accessible (2)
	accommodate (6)
	accommodating (1)
	accommodation (1)
	accomplish (1)
	achieve (2)
	acoustic (1)
	acoustics (1)
	act (4)
	action (1)
	active (1)
	actual (3)
	ADA (4)
	added (1)
	addict (1)
	addicted (9)
	addiction (6)
	addicts (1)
	addition (1)
	additional (2)
	address (15)
	addressed (5)
	addressing (1)
	adequate (1)
	adjacent (1)
	adjustment (3)
	administers (1)
	Administration (1)
	Administrative (5)
	adopt (1)
	adopted (2)
	adoption (1)
	adult (1)
	advance (2)
	advertised (2)
	affect (2)
	affects (1)
	affirm (1)
	afford (1)
	Affordable (1)
	afternoon (4)
	age (1)
	agency (1)
	agenda (9)
	agree (4)
	agreement (1)
	ahead (2)
	AIDS (2)
	alcohol (10)
	alcoholism (1)

	Index: alive..bullet
	alive (6)
	all-encompassing (1)
	allowed (4)
	alternative (1)
	alternatives (2)
	altogether (1)
	amazing (2)
	ambiguity (1)
	ambulance (1)
	amend (2)
	amendment (18)
	amendments (5)
	amenities (2)
	America (1)
	American (1)
	Americans (2)
	amount (3)
	amounts (2)
	angle (1)
	anticipate (1)
	anymore (1)
	AODE (2)
	Appeals (2)
	applaud (2)
	applicant (4)
	applicant's (1)
	application (5)
	applications (1)
	applied (1)
	apply (6)
	applying (1)
	appointment (6)
	appointments (1)
	appreciative (1)
	approach (1)
	approval (8)
	approve (2)
	approved (2)
	area (14)
	areas (6)
	arterial (1)
	assembly (1)
	assessment (1)
	assisted (1)
	assume (4)
	assuming (2)
	attack (1)
	attempt (1)
	attend (1)
	attorney (3)
	attorney's (2)
	auditorium (8)
	authority (2)
	availability's (1)
	average (2)
	back (14)
	background (1)
	backup (1)
	bad (2)
	bailiwick (1)
	Baker (7)
	balance (2)
	ban (1)
	banished (1)
	Bardstown (1)
	based (8)
	basically (3)
	basis (1)
	Bates (18)
	bathroom (1)
	bedrooms (1)
	beds (3)
	beginning (2)
	begins (1)
	Behavioral (1)
	benefit (1)
	big (4)
	bigger (1)
	binding (2)
	bit (8)
	black (1)
	blank (1)
	blocks (2)
	blood (2)
	blue (1)
	board (16)
	Bob (3)
	bodies (1)
	Bolton (1)
	brain (2)
	brainer (1)
	break (2)
	Brian (6)
	Brian's (1)
	bring (6)
	bringing (2)
	broadly (1)
	Brown (10)
	building (7)
	buildings (5)
	bullet (10)

	Index: bulleted..Commissioner
	bulleted (2)
	burden (2)
	burdensome (1)
	bus (1)
	business (6)
	buying (3)
	cafeteria (5)
	call (5)
	called (3)
	calling (1)
	calls (2)
	can't' (1)
	capable (1)
	capacity (1)
	capture (1)
	care (6)
	careful (4)
	Carlson (33)
	Carlson's (1)
	carpet (1)
	case (26)
	cases (10)
	category (1)
	causing (1)
	caution (1)
	CDC (1)
	ceiling (2)
	cell (1)
	center (14)
	centers (3)
	Central (4)
	certificate (5)
	certificates (1)
	certified (3)
	cetera (1)
	chair (2)
	Chairman (4)
	CHAIRPERSON (1)
	chairs (11)
	chance (1)
	change (11)
	changed (3)
	changing (1)
	cheaper (2)
	check (1)
	chemistry (1)
	Chief (6)
	child-sized (1)
	children (1)
	chronic (2)
	church (1)
	churches (1)
	cigarettes (1)
	Cincinnati (3)
	Circuit (4)
	citation (1)
	citations (2)
	cities (1)
	citizens (1)
	city (7)
	clarification (1)
	clarify (2)
	class (1)
	classification (1)
	classified (3)
	clean (2)
	cleans (1)
	clear (5)
	Clerk (38)
	clients (7)
	Cliff (6)
	Clifford (1)
	clinic (57)
	clinicians (1)
	clinics (73)
	close (3)
	closely (1)
	closures (1)
	code (20)
	collector (1)
	combat (1)
	comfortable (3)
	comment (1)
	comments (1)
	Commission (14)
	Commission's (1)
	Commissioner (267)

	Index: Commissioners..days
	Commissioners (11)
	common (1)
	Commonwealth (1)
	communities (3)
	community (11)
	company (1)
	comparison (1)
	compassionate (1)
	competition (1)
	complain (2)
	complaints (1)
	complete (1)
	completely (1)
	compliance (1)
	comply (1)
	Comprehensive (2)
	concentrated (1)
	concern (2)
	concerns (7)
	conclusion (1)
	condition (2)
	conditional (12)
	conference (1)
	confidence (1)
	confident (1)
	confusion (1)
	consent (1)
	consequences (1)
	considerably (1)
	consideration (2)
	considered (11)
	constituents (2)
	consumed (1)
	context (1)
	continue (2)
	continued (1)
	contribute (1)
	contributing (1)
	control (1)
	controlled (5)
	conversation (2)
	Copies (1)
	copy (1)
	Cornerstone (1)
	correct (6)
	cost (1)
	Council (12)
	counseling (10)
	counselor (6)
	counselors (6)
	counteract (1)
	counties (1)
	County (3)
	couple (3)
	Courier (2)
	Court (2)
	cover (1)
	covers (1)
	Covington (16)
	create (1)
	Credentialing (1)
	Creek (30)
	Creek's (1)
	criteria (3)
	Cruisers (1)
	CSAD (1)
	curious (2)
	current (2)
	custodian (1)
	daily (2)
	dangerous (1)
	date (2)
	David (9)
	Davidson (10)
	day (16)
	days (4)

	Index: DEA..enter
	DEA (1)
	DEA'S (1)
	deal (3)
	dealing (1)
	deaths (1)
	decision (1)
	decisions (1)
	defer (1)
	deferred (1)
	define (1)
	defined (2)
	definition (7)
	definitions (1)
	deliberations (1)
	demand (2)
	denial (1)
	deny (1)
	department (5)
	department's (1)
	Departments (1)
	depend (1)
	depends (3)
	depressed (1)
	description (1)
	Design (2)
	desire (1)
	desk (1)
	desks (1)
	desperately (1)
	deteriorate (1)
	determine (3)
	determined (1)
	detox (3)
	detriment (1)
	development (14)
	diabetic (1)
	dialogue (1)
	dialysis (1)
	die (2)
	died (2)
	difference (3)
	differently (1)
	difficult (2)
	direct (1)
	directing (2)
	direction (4)
	director (6)
	Disabilities (2)
	disability (1)
	disabled (1)
	discretion (1)
	discriminating (1)
	discrimination (2)
	discuss (1)
	discussed (1)
	discussing (1)
	discussion (4)
	discussions (1)
	disease (3)
	disorders (3)
	dispensed (1)
	distaste (1)
	district (8)
	districts (1)
	docketed (1)
	doctor (5)
	doctor's (1)
	doctors (1)
	documents (1)
	door (2)
	doors (2)
	dosage (2)
	dose (11)
	dosing (2)
	downtown (3)
	draft (2)
	drafters (1)
	drink (1)
	driving (2)
	drug (26)
	drug-related (1)
	drugs (5)
	due (1)
	earlier (3)
	east (7)
	easy (1)
	echo (1)
	educated (1)
	Education (1)
	effect (1)
	effects (1)
	elaborate (1)
	element (2)
	elementary (8)
	Elementary's (1)
	elephant (1)
	eligible (2)
	eliminating (1)
	else's (1)
	emergency (1)
	Emily (3)
	Emma (4)
	employed (1)
	employee (1)
	enables (2)
	encapsulated (1)
	encourage (2)
	end (6)
	ended (2)
	enforcement (1)
	enlarged (1)
	ensure (1)
	entail (1)
	enter (2)

	Index: entering..happen
	entering (1)
	Entity (2)
	entry (2)
	epidemic (2)
	equation (1)
	established (2)
	everybody's (1)
	everyone's (1)
	everything's (1)
	evidence (1)
	excited (3)
	excluded (1)
	exercise (1)
	exist (2)
	existence (1)
	existing (6)
	expand (4)
	expansion (1)
	expensive (1)
	experience (6)
	explain (2)
	exposed (1)
	expressly (1)
	extensive (1)
	extent (1)
	exterior (1)
	eye-openers (1)
	EZ1 (1)
	face (1)
	facilities (22)
	facility (23)
	fact (3)
	factors (4)
	facts (1)
	fair (1)
	fall (4)
	familiar (1)
	families (3)
	family (3)
	faster (2)
	favor (8)
	federal (4)
	feeling (1)
	feelings (1)
	feet (7)
	Fern (31)
	field (1)
	fight (1)
	figure (1)
	files (1)
	fill (2)
	final (2)
	finally (1)
	find (2)
	findings (2)
	fine (1)
	finished (1)
	fire (6)
	firsthand (1)
	fit (1)
	fits (1)
	fixed (2)
	flat (1)
	floor (3)
	folding (1)
	folks (3)
	follow (3)
	follow- (1)
	form (5)
	forms (1)
	forward (1)
	forwarded (1)
	fought (1)
	fourth (2)
	framework (1)
	frankly (1)
	free (1)
	frequency (1)
	friend (1)
	front (2)
	full (2)
	fully (1)
	function (2)
	functioning (1)
	funded (1)
	funding (4)
	future (2)
	Gamble (1)
	game (1)
	gave (1)
	general (3)
	generally (4)
	geneses (1)
	give (4)
	giving (1)
	good (14)
	government (11)
	governments (2)
	granting (1)
	gray (1)
	great (1)
	grocery (1)
	group (4)
	growing (1)
	guess (8)
	gym (3)
	Haberman (1)
	habit (1)
	half-life (1)
	Hamilton (1)
	hand (1)
	handicap (1)
	handled (1)
	handout (1)
	Hang (1)
	happen (3)

	Index: happening..Journal
	happening (1)
	happy (3)
	harassed (1)
	harassing (1)
	hard (2)
	head (1)
	headed (1)
	heading (1)
	health (7)
	healthy (1)
	hear (3)
	heard (5)
	hearing (22)
	hearings (1)
	heart (1)
	held (3)
	helped (1)
	helpful (1)
	helping (2)
	helps (2)
	hepatitis (1)
	heroin (14)
	HERSEL (1)
	hey (1)
	high (15)
	history (1)
	hold (1)
	hook (1)
	hope (4)
	hospital (3)
	hospitals (7)
	hour (3)
	hours (8)
	house (1)
	housekeeping (1)
	Howard (27)
	huge (3)
	human (1)
	hundreds (1)
	hurdles (1)
	Hurstbourne (1)
	idea (1)
	illness (1)
	illuminated (1)
	illuminating (1)
	imagine (1)
	immediately (2)
	impact (1)
	impacts (1)
	important (7)
	impossible (1)
	in-house (1)
	inadequate (1)
	Inaudible (6)
	incident (1)
	include (3)
	includes (2)
	including (4)
	incorporated (1)
	Indiana (2)
	Indianapolis (1)
	indirectly (1)
	individual (4)
	indoor (2)
	indoors (1)
	industrial (1)
	industry (1)
	information (4)
	informed (1)
	initial (2)
	inside (3)
	inspection (1)
	insulin (1)
	insurance (1)
	intensive (1)
	interested (1)
	interesting (2)
	interior (1)
	interpretation (4)
	interpretations (1)
	intersection (1)
	interviews (1)
	involved (5)
	issue (13)
	issued (1)
	issues (10)
	item (1)
	items (1)
	jail (2)
	Jarboe (92)
	Jeff (2)
	Jefferson (1)
	Joann (2)
	job (3)
	jobs (1)
	Joe (2)
	John (3)
	Joseph (1)
	Journal (2)

	Index: Julia..medical
	Julia (2)
	jump (1)
	KAR (2)
	Kentucky (17)
	kid (1)
	kids (2)
	killing (1)
	kind (34)
	kinds (2)
	KIPDA (1)
	Kirchdorfer (1)
	knew (1)
	knowing (1)
	lack (1)
	lady (2)
	land (18)
	lane (1)
	language (2)
	large (3)
	larger (1)
	latch (1)
	law (1)
	lawfully (1)
	Lawrenceburg (1)
	laws (1)
	lawyers (1)
	leave (4)
	left (2)
	legal (1)
	legally (1)
	length (2)
	lessen (1)
	letter (1)
	lettering (1)
	level (3)
	Lewis (13)
	Lexington (1)
	license (1)
	licensed (5)
	life- (1)
	lifelong (2)
	light (2)
	lighting (3)
	likelihood (1)
	limit (2)
	limitations (1)
	limited (1)
	limiting (1)
	limits (1)
	lines (6)
	liquid (1)
	list (3)
	listed (3)
	live (1)
	lives (7)
	living (1)
	load (1)
	local (1)
	locate (2)
	located (4)
	location (8)
	locations (8)
	loitering (12)
	long (9)
	longer (4)
	looked (4)
	Lori (1)
	loss (1)
	lot (19)
	Louisville (19)
	lower (2)
	luck (1)
	Lula (6)
	M1 (1)
	M2 (1)
	M3 (1)
	Mabry (35)
	made (8)
	maintain (1)
	make (24)
	makes (2)
	making (2)
	managed (1)
	Manager (1)
	Manger (1)
	many's (1)
	marching (1)
	Marilyn (3)
	Marilyn's (1)
	Mark (1)
	markers (1)
	markup (1)
	Mary (1)
	material (1)
	materials (2)
	matter (2)
	Matthews (2)
	maximum (1)
	Maysville (1)
	means (1)
	medical (35)

	Index: medical-assisted..options
	medical-assisted (2)
	medication (1)
	medication-assisted (2)
	medicine (2)
	meet (1)
	meeting (5)
	meetings (1)
	meets (1)
	members (4)
	mention (1)
	mentioned (3)
	met (1)
	methadone (64)
	Metro (20)
	Metro-run (1)
	microphone (1)
	microphones (3)
	middle (1)
	Middletown (2)
	midnight (4)
	mind (1)
	minimum (1)
	minor (1)
	minute (1)
	minutes (10)
	mistake (1)
	mitigation (2)
	modifications (1)
	money (1)
	monitor (2)
	monitored (1)
	monitoring (2)
	month (2)
	months (1)
	morning (7)
	motion (14)
	Mount (1)
	mouth (2)
	move (6)
	multiple (1)
	nail (1)
	Narcan (1)
	Narcotics (9)
	nation (17)
	national (1)
	nature (1)
	needed (2)
	needing (2)
	needle-sharing (1)
	negative (1)
	night (4)
	nimby (1)
	Ninth (1)
	nobody's (1)
	non- (1)
	nonconforming (3)
	nonprofit (7)
	nonprofits (4)
	normal (2)
	northern (2)
	note (1)
	November (5)
	nuance (1)
	number (8)
	numbers (1)
	oath (1)
	observation (1)
	observed (3)
	observes (1)
	obvious (1)
	occur (2)
	October (4)
	offer (1)
	offered (1)
	office (5)
	offices (1)
	official (1)
	on-site (1)
	open (19)
	open-minded (1)
	opened (3)
	opening (2)
	opens (1)
	operate (2)
	operated (2)
	operates (1)
	operating (3)
	operation (6)
	operations (2)
	operators (1)
	opiate (1)
	opinion (3)
	opioid (4)
	opioids (1)
	opportunity (2)
	opposed (2)
	opposition (1)
	option (3)
	options (2)

	Index: order..problematic
	order (1)
	orders (1)
	ordinance (11)
	orientation (1)
	oriented (1)
	other's (1)
	outbreak (1)
	outdoor (2)
	outline (1)
	outpatient (1)
	overdose (4)
	overdoses (3)
	overhead (1)
	overrun (1)
	oversight (1)
	overwhelming (2)
	owns (1)
	p.m. (1)
	padded (1)
	Paducah (1)
	parameters (1)
	Pardon (2)
	parents (1)
	parking (11)
	part (10)
	passed (4)
	past (1)
	patient (3)
	patients (15)
	Pavilion (1)
	pay (1)
	peak (2)
	people (85)
	percent (4)
	period (4)
	permanent (2)
	permit (11)
	permits (1)
	permitted (1)
	person (7)
	person's (1)
	personally (1)
	persons (7)
	perspective (1)
	Peterson (18)
	phones (1)
	phonetic (1)
	phrase (5)
	physically (1)
	physicians (1)
	physiological (1)
	pick (4)
	pictures (2)
	Pikeville (1)
	place (5)
	places (6)
	plan (3)
	planning (16)
	play (2)
	pleased (1)
	plenty (4)
	pocket (1)
	podium (1)
	point (5)
	points (4)
	police (3)
	policing (1)
	politically (1)
	poorly (1)
	portable (2)
	portion (1)
	possibly (1)
	potential (4)
	potentially (2)
	practice (3)
	preceding (1)
	prefer (3)
	preference (1)
	prepare (1)
	prescription (1)
	present (3)
	presentation (2)
	presentations (1)
	pressure (2)
	presuming (1)
	pretty (4)
	prevent (1)
	Prevention (1)
	primary (3)
	prime (1)
	principle (1)
	print (1)
	printed (1)
	prior (2)
	privacy (1)
	private (3)
	privately (1)
	problem (16)
	problematic (1)

	Index: problems..represent
	problems (4)
	procedures (2)
	process (5)
	processing (1)
	Proctor (1)
	productive (1)
	profit (16)
	program (5)
	programs (4)
	Project (2)
	projector (4)
	promote (1)
	proper (3)
	properly (7)
	properties (2)
	property (11)
	proponents (1)
	proposal (6)
	proposals (3)
	propose (1)
	proposed (14)
	proposing (2)
	protected (4)
	protections (1)
	provide (4)
	provided (3)
	providers (1)
	providing (2)
	provision (3)
	provisions (7)
	psychiatrist (3)
	psychiatry (1)
	public (21)
	public's (1)
	put (12)
	putting (2)
	qualified (1)
	quasi- (1)
	question (22)
	questioning (1)
	questions (22)
	quick (4)
	quicker (1)
	raised (2)
	rampant (1)
	random (1)
	range (1)
	rationale (1)
	reach (1)
	read (4)
	reading (2)
	ready (3)
	real (1)
	realization (1)
	realize (5)
	realtors (1)
	rear (5)
	reason (3)
	reasonable (7)
	reasons (3)
	rebuttal (2)
	receives (1)
	recently (2)
	recognize (1)
	recommend (4)
	recommendation (6)
	recommendations (1)
	record (5)
	RECORDING (1)
	records (1)
	red (1)
	reduce (1)
	reference (1)
	reg (1)
	regular (1)
	regulate (5)
	regulated (4)
	regulates (1)
	regulating (5)
	regulation (5)
	regulations (17)
	regulatory (2)
	related (13)
	relocated (1)
	rely (2)
	remain (1)
	remarks (1)
	remember (3)
	remembered (1)
	remove (1)
	removed (1)
	removing (2)
	replacing (1)
	report (11)
	represent (1)

	Index: representative..Smith
	representative (3)
	represented (1)
	representing (1)
	request (2)
	requesting (1)
	require (5)
	required (3)
	requirement (3)
	requirements (6)
	requires (2)
	requiring (2)
	research (2)
	residential (1)
	residing (1)
	resolution (1)
	resources (1)
	respond (1)
	responding (1)
	rest (1)
	restriction (2)
	restrictions (1)
	review (2)
	reviewed (2)
	revise (1)
	rezoning (1)
	Richard (1)
	Rights (1)
	ripe (1)
	river (1)
	Robert (2)
	roll (4)
	rolling (1)
	rolls (3)
	room (9)
	rough (1)
	roughly (1)
	rows (1)
	ruin (4)
	ruined (1)
	Rule (1)
	rules (4)
	run (5)
	runs (4)
	rush (1)
	safety (1)
	Saint (2)
	Saturday (1)
	save (1)
	saves (1)
	scared (1)
	scenario (2)
	Schedule (1)
	scheduled (1)
	scheme (1)
	school (14)
	Schulte (22)
	scope (1)
	screen (8)
	screens (4)
	seat (1)
	seated (1)
	seating (2)
	seats (3)
	Section (2)
	secured (1)
	security (5)
	seek (5)
	seeking (3)
	segment (1)
	selecting (1)
	send (3)
	sense (1)
	separate (1)
	September (1)
	served (1)
	service (3)
	services (4)
	serving (1)
	session (4)
	session's (1)
	set (12)
	set-up (1)
	setback (1)
	sets (1)
	setting (4)
	share (1)
	sheer (1)
	shift (3)
	shifts (1)
	short (3)
	shots (2)
	show (3)
	showing (3)
	shown (1)
	sic (1)
	sick (1)
	side (4)
	sidelines (1)
	sides (1)
	significant (2)
	signify (1)
	signs (2)
	similar (9)
	simple (1)
	single (5)
	singling (2)
	Sir (2)
	sit (4)
	site (9)
	sites (4)
	sitting (3)
	situation (4)
	situation's (1)
	Sixth (1)
	size (7)
	slides (1)
	small (1)
	smaller (1)
	smallest (1)
	Smith (19)

	Index: smoke..there'll
	smoke (7)
	smoking (8)
	smoothly (1)
	Snyder (2)
	sobut (1)
	society (4)
	sole (1)
	somebody's (2)
	someone's (1)
	sort (2)
	sorts (1)
	sound (7)
	south (3)
	southeast (1)
	space (2)
	speak (9)
	speaker (3)
	speaker's (1)
	speakers (7)
	speaking (2)
	specific (5)
	specifically (6)
	spending (1)
	spent (1)
	spoke (3)
	sponsor (1)
	sponsors (2)
	square (1)
	stabilized (1)
	stable (1)
	stack (1)
	stacked (1)
	staff (18)
	stage (3)
	stages (4)
	staggering (1)
	stairs (1)
	stand (5)
	standard (2)
	standards (6)
	standing (5)
	start (5)
	started (1)
	starting (1)
	state (16)
	state-run (1)
	statement (2)
	statements (1)
	static (1)
	station (1)
	statistics (1)
	statute (2)
	stay (6)
	steady (2)
	steps (1)
	stigma (1)
	stools (2)
	stop (1)
	stops (1)
	store (1)
	street (6)
	streets (2)
	stricken (1)
	strikethrough (1)
	strip (1)
	strong (1)
	structures (2)
	stuff (2)
	subject (1)
	subset (1)
	substance (4)
	substances (5)
	sued (1)
	sufficient (1)
	suggest (1)
	suggestion (1)
	summaries (1)
	summary (2)
	Sunday (1)
	support (6)
	surprised (1)
	surprising (1)
	surrounding (1)
	surroundings (1)
	suspecting (1)
	swear (1)
	system (8)
	table (3)
	tables (2)
	tailored (1)
	taking (2)
	talk (2)
	talked (4)
	talking (9)
	tapered (1)
	target (2)
	telling (2)
	tells (1)
	term (6)
	terminology (1)
	terminology's (1)
	terms (2)
	testify (1)
	testimony (11)
	testing (1)
	text (13)
	that'll (1)
	theatre (2)
	therapy (1)
	there'll (2)

	Index: thing..won
	thing (12)
	things (22)
	thinking (2)
	thought (4)
	threatening (1)
	throw (1)
	tied (1)
	tighter (1)
	time (31)
	times (1)
	titled (1)
	today (13)
	today's (5)
	Tomes (17)
	top (2)
	total (2)
	totally (1)
	tour (1)
	town (2)
	traffic (1)
	training (3)
	tranquilizer (1)
	transportation (3)
	treat (8)
	treated (3)
	treating (3)
	treatment (45)
	treatments (5)
	treats (1)
	trigger (1)
	troubled (1)
	truck (1)
	True (1)
	trust (1)
	truth (1)
	turn (8)
	Turner (24)
	turning (1)
	type (6)
	types (5)
	typical (1)
	typically (6)
	Uh-huh (1)
	underline (1)
	underlined (1)
	underscore (1)
	understand (4)
	understanding (2)
	Understood (1)
	unfolded (1)
	unintended (1)
	unit (1)
	unpreventable (1)
	unreasonable (1)
	upfront (1)
	upper (1)
	urgent (1)
	urine (1)
	variances (1)
	variation (1)
	vary (1)
	versus (2)
	Veterans (1)
	vibrate (1)
	view (1)
	visit (2)
	visited (2)
	visits (4)
	vote (4)
	voting (1)
	waiting (13)
	waiver (3)
	waivers (1)
	walk (6)
	walks (1)
	wall (1)
	wanted (5)
	wanting (2)
	Washington-glen (1)
	watched (2)
	ways (1)
	weaning (1)
	week (5)
	weekly (3)
	weigh (1)
	weighed (1)
	weight (1)
	Wellness (1)
	west (1)
	when's (1)
	white (1)
	wiggle (1)
	Williams (26)
	window (3)
	windows (2)
	wishing (1)
	woefully (1)
	won (1)

	Index: wonderful..zoning
	wonderful (1)
	word (1)
	worded (1)
	wording (1)
	words (1)
	wordsmithing (1)
	work (17)
	worked (2)
	working (7)
	works (3)
	worried (1)
	worry (2)
	wouldn't' (1)
	written (1)
	wrong (1)
	yard (3)
	year (4)
	years (5)
	yesterday (1)
	you-all (6)
	young (2)
	ZIP (1)
	zoning (19)



